
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
September 9, 2013 

5:00 PM 
(reconvened September 23, 2013) 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Presentation – Parks and Recreation Foundation 

Old Business 

3. Resolution Number 4494 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-15-4-
016-009.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
The City Of Vestavia Hills To Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing 
The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be 
Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal 
Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

4. Resolution Number 4495 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-30-2-
014-001.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
The City Of Vestavia Hills To Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing 
The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be 
Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal 
Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

5. Motion For Adjournment 

 

 



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4494 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 3128 AUTUMN 
COURT, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 28-15-4-
016-009.000, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 
THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, 
INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS TO CAUSE SAID 
DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE 
COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST 
THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
I.D. Number 28-15-4-016-009.000 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to the 
life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on July 16, 2013, a copy of 
same was sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 2 

 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
(continued to September 23, 2013) as follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
(continued to September 30, 2013) and after due deliberation the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that the structure standing at 3128 Autumn Court, 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Parcel ID# 28-15-4-016-009.000 is unsafe to the extent of 
becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is 
due to be condemned and demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-
40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama 
(1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject; 
 
 Section 2. That the City of Vestavia Hills shall cause said demolition to be 
performed by its own employees and/or by contractor(s); and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 3 

 
 
 ADOPTED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 23rd 
day of September, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 
(continued to September 23, 2013), and the same appears of record in the minute book of 
said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 























Resolution Number 4495 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4495 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 1939 OLD CREEK 
TRAIL, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 28-30-2-014-
001.000, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 
11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, 
OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS TO CAUSE SAID DEMOLITION TO BE 
PERFORMED AND DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY AND 
THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE COST OF SUCH 
DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST THE LAND ON 
WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE EXISTS AS A 
MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE RECOVERED 
IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
I.D. Number 28-30-2-014-001.000 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to the 
life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on July 16, 2013, a copy of 
same was sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 



Resolution Number 4495 
Page 2 

 
 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
(continued to September 23, 2013), as follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
(continued to September 23, 2013) and after due deliberation the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that the structure standing at 1939 Old Creek Trail, 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Parcel ID# 28-30-2-014-001.000 is unsafe to the extent of 
becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is 
due to be condemned and demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-
40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama 
(1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
 
 Section 2. That the City of Vestavia Hills shall cause said demolition to be 
performed by its own employees and/or by contractor(s); and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 ADOPTED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4495 
Page 3 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 23rd 
day of September, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 
(continued to September 23, 2013), and the same appears of record in the minute book of 
said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

























Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
September 23, 2013 

5:00 PM 
 

6. Call to Order 
7. Roll Call 
8. Invocation – Steve Ammons 
9. Pledge of Allegiance 
10. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
11. City Manager’s Report 
12. Councilors’ Reports  
13. Proclamation – Fire Prevention Week – October 6-12, 2013 
14. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

Old Business 

15. Resolution Number 4505 – A Resolution Accepting Bids For Non-Athletic Grounds 
Maintenance For Parks And Recreation And Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest  

16. Resolution Number 4507 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Remit 
Payment On An Invoice For Additional Sewer Capacity Adjustments To Enviro Services 
LLC For Sewer Services To The Liberty Park Sports Complex   (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2464 – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2427 Regarding 
Traffic Education  (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2465 – An Ordinance Establishing And Creating The Collision 
Avoidance Training Program For The City Of Vestavia Hills  (public hearing) 

New Business 

19. Resolution Number 4508 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For T Waynes 
BBQ Smokehouse LLC d/b/a T Waynes BBQ Smokehouse; Timothy Bridges, Executive 

20. Resolution Number 4509 - A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For WCS 
Ventures, LLC D/B/A Candy’s Wine Experience, 640 Olde Towne Road; Candace Layne 
West, Executive 

21. Resolution Number 4510 – A Resolution Declaring Personal Property As Surplus And 
Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 



22. Resolution Number 4511 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver And Agreement With Retail Strategies For Economic Development 
Consulting Services  

23. Resolution Number 4512 – A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute and 
deliver a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce for Economic Development Services 

24. Resolution Number 4513 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Authorization to Bind Insurance Coverage With J. Smith Lanier And 
Company For Excess Liability Insurance Coverage And Automobile Physical Damage 
Coverage 

25. Resolution Number 4514 - A Resolution Changing The Date Of The First City Council 
Meeting In November From November 11, 2013 To November 13, 2013 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

26. Ordinance Number 2466 – An Ordinance Finding And Determining That Real Property 
Owned By The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama Being Approximately 1.66 +/- Acres Of 
The Property Located At 1112 Montgomery Highway And An Approximately 22, 000 
Square Foot Building Located On The Property Is Not Needed For Public Or Municipal 
Purposes; To Accept An Offer By Commercial Reality Partners, LLC 

27. Citizens Comments  
28. Executive Session 
29. Motion For Adjournment 

 



Resolution Number 4505 
Page pg. 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4505 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR NON-ATHLETIC GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for non-athletic grounds maintenance 

for the Parks and Recreation Department and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest consisting of a 

base bid and eight (8) alternates; and 

 WHEREAS, bids were received on August 27, 2013 and read aloud publicly with the 

results tabulated and detailed in a memorandum to the City Manager from the Public Services 

Director dated September 4, 2013, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4505; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described memorandum recommends the acceptance of the bids 

and alternates as follows:  (1) award the base bid to Tru Green for an amount not to exceed 

$35,712.38; and (2) eliminate Alternate 3 and award Alternates 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, and 8 to Natural 

Effect totaling $16,890; and 

 WHEREAS, in a memorandum dated September 4, 2013 to the City Manager from the 

Library Director, recommendation was made to award Alternate 7 to Natural Effect in an amount 

not to exceed $10,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid as recommended by each Department Head. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Tru Green is hereby accepted for the base bid only; and 

2. The bid package submitted by Natural Effect is hereby accepted for Alternates 1, 2, 4, 5, 

6, 7 and 8 as described above; and 



Resolution Number 4505 
Page pg. 2 

 
3. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

said 3-year agreement to both companies for non-athletic maintenance for a period of 

thirty-six (36) months; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4505 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 

2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





































Resolution Number 4507 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4507 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REMIT 
PAYMENT FOR ADDITIONAL SEWER CAPACITY ADJUSTMENTS TO 
ENVIRO SERVICES LLC FOR SEWER SERVICES TO THE LIBERTY 
PARK SPORTS COMPLEX 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) constructed and currently operates the 

Liberty Park Sports Park facilities located adjacent to Liberty Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the sports complex opened in 1998 and was provided sewer services by 

Enviro Services, LLC (“Enviro”), a privately owned sewer treatment facility owned and operated 

by the Liberty Park Joint Venture (“LPJV”) pursuant to an agreement for an estimated amount of 

waste water from the park; and 

 WHEREAS, for a period of approximately 14 years, the usage went unchecked until 

LPJV discovered that the allotment originally estimated wasn’t sufficient to cover the actual 

usage; and 

 WHEREAS, in a memorandum dated August 29, 2013, from the Public Services 

Director to the Finance Director, an explanation of an invoice from Enviro which was submitted 

for payment and gave a full explanation of the background of waste water generated from 

operation of the park along with the efforts both by the City and LPJV to determine any possible 

leaks or separate meters that might have skewed the calculated usage; and 

 WHEREAS, all research has shown that the invoice, a copy of which is attached and 

marked as Exhibit B and attached to this Resolution Number 4507, is due and payable in the 

amount of $52,576; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the information and recommended approval 

of said remittance. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to remit payment to Enviro Services LLC 

payment for invoice number AUG-082013 in the amount of $52,576; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4507 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 



Resolution Number 4507 
Page 2 

 
 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A



Exhibit B



PATRICK H. BOONE
ATTORNEY AND COUNSELOR AT LAW

NEW SOUTH FEDERAL SAVINGSBUILDING. SUITE705

215RICHARD ARRINGTON. JR. BOULEVARD NORTH

BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 35203-3720

TELEPHONE (205) 324-2018

FACSIMILE (205) 324-2295

July 17,2012

By Hand Delivery

Confidential and Privileged
Communication Between Attorney and Client
Not Intended for Publication or Diatrihiitinn

Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.
Vestavia Hills Municipal Center
P. O. Box 660854

Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35266-0854

In Re: Proposed Sewer Service Agreement Between
Enviro Services, LLC and the City ofVestavia Hills

Dear Mayor Zaragoza:

Services^££"" ^ '' ^ *" ^ &̂ ^*" **» President ofEn™

Vestavia Hi„s^I^SS^SS^ ** W ^ *"**"»
3. Letter, dated June 12,2012, from Walter Schoel, III to Enviro Services, LLC.

5. Invoice from Enviro to the City in the amount of$56,993.50.

re:omm?„daZs°Se °' ^ '^ " ,0 *"** ^ "*" "* Witten ,e*» °I**» and some



July 17,2012
Page 2

I. FACTS

B. City Purchased Property for a Parkt?

1. Deed: On May 9, 1995, the City ofVestavia Hills Alaham* /"t;h,^ p
otTeXSLm^o61*"™* °f$1'T92-04 PUrChaSed ^49^trL b°eS Pa*

was dSX S fed in"! IvTJf^™?^^ d"d fr°m LPJV to «* <5on that date ££Z^££S£&^ °f Prcbate °fJeff-°" County, AlabamI

limiting its use2'to anTtl'vZT'''J** Pr°Perty is Subject t0 aRestri<*ve Covenant

3. Zoning:

te tad on April ]!»"l»; kS^''°""1 m°M'"»"C...iyC,mniia.nreoMj

prop*,, ,„ . PTO LS«££* "°" •"™Ml' *'0,,M » -«™» <«°4 «»
C- Financing: On December 4 199fi th* rw r^„ -i <• .. «.

rills, Alabama approved ResolutionX™£/™< ,, ? "^ f°r me Clty of Vestavia
5^0(K),000.001br^^SrfTIJ!T,^, f56 a"thorlzlng «* Mayor to borrow up tocomplex at Liberty Pa*" «=onstrt,ct,o„ and .mprovement ofthe new sports facility

c<«„of1h^ and specificati-f- «*

wi^in, tjacenfoT^SSliftibertfp t f J™* °f "* °Bfl-B «"« S^mlimitation, awaste wateVrataennlln, , * * develoPment 0) which includes, whhout
spray -b^ionldSSS^TteSPrlfT ^l^PUmP ^ effll,e«and any and all other ^^S^^^^.Sy^iKl^a^^^
fibres, fittings, valves, g«Svi^^«S^ll^i,^,y• ^^^ ""^ pipeS'appurtenances Wwhich is supplying, or m̂ —££. ^ £J SIS



July 17,2012
Page 3

herein) to lots, dwellings, buildings, recreational facilities or other structures located in a™
residential or commercial subdivisions within, adjacent or app^oid^^V^^p^development (collectively, the "Utility System"). PProximate to the Liberty Park

E. Events of 1996:

die associates, dated May 31,1996, in order to estimate sewerage flows It concluded that *h„average daily flow from the facility would be 1,250 gallons per da?. '

feonalH O-mJ' n ,^e(luest for Contract: On December 12, 1996, Enviro by and through
|0ricifw?Atiers,ed Mayor Reynoids to sien the sew- **««** -S

G. Events of 1997:

tf • * L Application by City: On July 28, 1997, Mayor Reynolds anolied toIjnviro for sewer services based on an estimated flow of 1,250 gallons per day ™
H. Events of 1999:

tU , , r^1* , Request for r»"^acts; On July 13, 1999, Robert C. McLean of
tt^i: VGl0Pment reqUeSted ^ CIerk S°™y J°neS * ^ ^e feliSTti

pa*day; and
(a) Sewer Capacity Restriction and Agreement based on 1,250 gall

ons

day
(b) Commercial Sewer Service Agreement based on 1,250 gallons per

I- Events of 2012:

average

per

1. Estimate: On June 12, 2012, Walter Schoel, III estimated that the current
metered sanitary flow (taken from water meter readings) is approximately 4,927 gallons



July 17,2012
Page 4

Lowe.,, 1,1 as Vice pJSSKSSSS^** "' ^ **** by - *"»* *» G.

Rig.UofLienforSewe(r3Lessr„t•a7°dmmerCia, W ^^ Agre" a"d C~« '"
(b) Pay an invoice in the amount of$56,993.50.

IL DULY EXECUTED nonriMFivrr

^nviroLdVe°c5.Ve "^ """ *^ ^ ** *"* d~ si^d * balh
A. Application.

B. Commercial Sewer Service Agreement.

C. Sewer Capacity Restriction Agreement.

t^a^^^^i^r'iir?ty actty has any of ^du,y

IE[- ALABAMA LAW ON I.TF.N AGAINST PTTBT TC PRQPF.RTV

It is awell-established rule of law that amaterialmen's lien will not attach to the nnhlir
£tZa908?IdT"r°na""^ C°rP°rati°n- *"W-S^, Sip^Aia. oio (1908), and Nunnallyv. Dorand, HOAIa.539.

1V- SOME INTERESTING TERMS AMn ppny|STf>m QF Tnr
PROPOSED COMMERrTAr Sirw™ SERVirF APPpI^™

tH. c ?' T° my knowled8e>Enviro is *e "only game in town." It is my understanding that
ctS S6Wer S6rVICe 0Pmted ^ JefferS0D C°Unty iS n0t 8Vailable ^ the"trty Part

wflttenLcearretforthr^nl.^0 °" ^"^ the «"~* ^ 15^ ^
C. The good news is that Enviro, pursuant to Section 3-F, will charge the Citywith other customers whose land use and operations are similar to those o^the Styconsistent



July 17, 2012
Page 5

v- MY RECOMMENDATIONS

Enviro seems to be the only available option to the City for sanitary sewer services
Therefore, recommend that you sign the agieement. Perhaps, the City Sula^ontoto
monthly water use and seek ways to reduce the daily flows.

Iam available to discuss this matter at your convenience.

Sincerely,

Patrick H. Boone
Vestavia Hills City Attorney

PHB:gp

<c: City Manager Randy Robertson (by hand)
P.S. Iam returning the following documents to you-

Serviceslc££^ ***^ ^ ^ G" ^ ffl aS Vice*"*"* «*Enviro

\^U^tt£^^2^for Sewer Services si^d by fo™
(c) Letter, dated June 12, 2012, from Walter Schoel, III to Enviro Services, LLC.

J- k. *?• eEnVJm ServiceS> LLC Commercial Sewer Service Agreement and Covenants andEjight ofL>en for Sewer Assessments by and between Enviro and the City. Covenants and
(e) Invoice from Enviro to the City in the amount of$56,993.50.



ENVIRO SERVICES, LLC
8000 Liberty Parkway, Suite 114

Vestavia Hills, AL 35242
205/945-6430

July 3,2012

May< >r Butch Zaragoza
City of Vestavia Hills
5131 Montgomery Highway
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216

Dear

Re: Sewer Service Allocation
Vestavia Hills Sports Park

MayorZaragoza:

As stated in the attached Application for Sewer Service dated July 28, 1997, the total volume of
, sewage or other effluent entering Enviro's sewer system from the Vestavia Hills Sports Park is

Z'Cation ]'25° 8all°nS ^ ^^ ThC °ity ^ PrCVi0l,Sly Paid S6Wer t3p feeS t0 Enviro based on
Ienclose aletter dated June 12, 2012, from Walter Schoel Engineering stating that Sports Park's

sewer service usage currently averages approximately 4,927 gallons per day which exceeds the limitation
by approximately 3,677 gallons per day. These circumstances will require an increase in the Sports
Park ssewer semce allocation from 1,250 gallons per day to 4,927 gallons per day to accommodate the
bportjs Park s actual flow into the sewer system.

On that basis, please execute and return to me the enclosed Commercial Sewer Service
Agreement which increases the Sports Park's sewer allocation to 4,927 gallons per day. The additional
sewei tap fee for the increase in the sewer allocation totals $56,993.50 (3,677 x $15.50 per additional
gallon per day), per the enclosed invoice. Please include a check in that amount, payable to Enviro
Services, when returning the executed Commercial Sewer Service Agreement.

Let me know ofany questions regarding the enclosed. My direct dial number is 205/945-6472
ThanI: youfor yourattention in this matter.

watei

.owrey,

Vice President
SGLicl

Enclosures

— /"-"y



t. Name of Appljcant(j
2- Applicants'

^il-x ixivv UAUKK » Jiv-—a, ju.ju.k,, *urrjUA\si\.XM.%Jl\ JClSil &JB,VVH»K Sf&K VJLC-—

a): City of Vcstavii .1$, Alabama, an Alabama municipal corooi

Status: X Owner Builder Other (Describe)

3. Type of Octupancy Single Family Residential
Single Family - Garden Homes
Condominium
Multi-Family One or Two Bedroom

... Multi-Family Three Bedroom

(see Exhibit A for categories)
Commercial, Category One

X New Building
Building Addition
Remodel

X Commercial, Category Two
Commercial, Category Three

Lot (the -Property"): 4700 Sicard HollowHoad. Birmingham. Alabama 352424. Address of

5. Legal

6. Type of Service:
Description of Lot: l^t*1UVcstavia3portsPark Survev;:Map-tiook 181. Page 54. Jefferson County. Alabama

X Gravity
Low Pressure
Other (Describe):

7. Number of iach Fixture to be installed:

Water
Closets

Bathtubs

Shower Baths;

Lavatories

Sinks

Urinals

TOTAL
FIXTURES

TOTAL
FIXTURES

Dish Washers

Garbage Grinders

Washiim Machines

floor Drains

Drinking Fountain

Sump — Pumn$ — Ejectors

See Exhibit "D" for
memorandum regarding sewer
allocation .

TOTAL
FIXTURES

N/A

8. undcrsij ncdThe

applicants) jjvill
laws. The
claims, andlixpcns
arise or result
of or in the;

applicants) warrants and represents that in connection with preparing the Property for sewer service- the
engage alicensed plumber and that such plumber will install all sewer systems in accordance with all applicable

undersigned applicants) agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Enviro Services, L.L.C. fro* all damages, costs
Expenses; (including reasonable attorneys', experts', and consultants' fees), in law or in equity, that may at any time

from damages to properly and personal injury, as well as all environmental liability, received or incurred by reason
ixmrsc of performing any work inconnection with this application.

9.

10.

The

to the applicknt(s)
The applicable
will delermiiic

right to chaug

In the event
Services, Lj

undersigned applicants) understands and acknowledges that in exchange for Enviro Services, L.L.C. furnishing sewer service
), the applicants) [shall be subject to amonthly use fee. The applicant(s) also may be required to pay atap fee

tap fees and use fees are set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Enviro Services LL C
the applicable category ofcommercial establishments on acase by case basis. Enviro Services LLC reserves the

;e such tap fees and use fees withoutnotice. "^vrawc

the applicants) requires low pressure sewer service in connection with the standard service provided by Enviro
.C, the applicants) shall be required to install agrinder pump and other applicable equipment and appunenances

II tu



gCgHESEL
Consulting Engineers

ill ne 12,2012

ENVIRO Services, LLC
8(00 Liberty Parkway, Suite 114
Visstavia Hills, Alabama 35242

Attention: Kenneth Hager

Reference: ENVIRO allotment - Vestavia Mills Sports Park

Dear Mr. Hager:

Tl

se

S

sa

of

fe

tei

e Vestavia Mills Sports Park at Liberty Park, which is tied to the ENVIRO Services sanitary
.ver system has been consistently exceeding its sanitary flow allotment from ENVIRO
rvices. The park is currently allocated 1,250 gpd offlow. The current average metered
iitary flow (taken from water meter readings) is approximately 4,927 gpd. This is an overage
3,677 gpd. The aliocalion for the Sports Park should be increased to 4,927 gpd and an impact
of$56,993.50 ($15.50 per gpd) assessed for the additional 3,677 gpd, in accordance with the

ms and conditions of service of ENVIRO Services.

ei

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Yc urs very truly,

WALTER SCHOEL ENGINEERING CO., INC.

Walter Schoel, III, Ph.D., P.E
Ala. Reg. No. 16519
President

Established in 1888

WALTER SCHOEL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.
1001 22nd Street South • Birmingham, Alabama 35205
P 205-323-6166 . F 205-328-2252 • schoel.com



STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY

[FORM REVISION DATE 01/01/05 - 2'"1 Edition]

ENVIRO SERVICES, L.L.C.
COMMERCIAL SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT AND COVENANTS

AND RIGHTOF LIEN FOR SEWER ASSESSMENTS

THIS COMMERCIAL SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT AND COVENANT*
fcTl?™ F°R SEWER ASSESSM*NTS ("this aLZ,^™^entered into a of , 2012, by and between ENVIRO SERVICES,
LLC, an Alabama limited liability company with its principal office located at 8000 Libert
^rkwaySmte 114 Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242 ("Enviro"), and CITY OF VESTAvS
E£5JS aa£lfa™ n™^ corporation, having aprincipal place of businesslocated 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 ("Customer").

RECITALS

t, ,h. it , d"I'U*iS J'16 °WDer °f that Certain sewer system within> adJacent or approximateto the L,berty Park development (i) which includes, without limitation, awaste waterteZem
pam system raw sewage and effluent pump stations, effluent spray absorption fidd rSfon
S^^K r^ SyStem ^ herCinafter defined) a"d any-"iflr se8:°gcollection systems all machinery, equipment, mains, pipes, fixtures, fittings valves eravit
sewer mains manholes, force mains, sewer laterals and appurtenance (ii) wh c^Tupp vma
or may in the tuturfe supp.y, Sewer Service (as defined herein) to lots dwelt Sff
«creational fac.hties or other structures .ocated in any residential or aJSKSto
sTem") ' " 0r:aPP™'™te '° «* "berty Park deve.opment (collectively, the "y

BJ c F°r ?UrP°SeS °f this A8reement> *c term "Low Pressure Sewer System" shallman and refer to that certain system of small diameter pressure sewer mains in on Tnder 0
S h p^ ft* devd°Pment and P^Perties proximate or adjacent the eto which iowned by Enviro and/or for which Enviro has the duty to maintain repair and ^aTe bv
contract, assignment, agreement or otherwise, and which is generally comprised of pTpe'
filings and valves constituting a"Low Pressure Sewer Main". The Low Pessure Sewl;
System begins at the point at which any Low Pressure Sewer Main discharges into aaraX
ever mam of the Utility System, and ends a. the point at which any low pSSes wer 3

serving any property within the Liberty Park development connects wkh ™iTlSe
Se*er Mam (typ.ca.ly adjacent to the front property line of the applicab.e property)

C. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Low Pressure Customer Sv^m"
ShilH ^ and refer t0 the >™ P— sewer .ateral(s) and grinder pun^?£££ apEe

1



related thereto, if any, that are owned by Customer, and for which the Customer has the duty
o maintain repair and replace, located in, under or upon the Premises (as hereinafter

defined), subject to Section 6.B below. The Low Pressure Customer System located in under
or upon the Premises, if any, begins at the point at which the low pressure sewer'lateral
installed at on, in or under the Premises connects with the Low Pressure Sewer Main and
ends at (and includes) the related grinder pump or similar appliance installed at, on in or
under the Premises; if any. '

D Customer desires to obtain, and Enviro desires to deliver, Sewer Service upon
t le terms and conditions contained herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

ri . Sectio" 1- Agreement to Sell and Purchase. Enviro shall sell and deliver to
Customer, and Customer shall purchase from Enviro, during the term of this Agreement all
Sewer Service (as defined herein) which Customer shall require on Customer's premises or
aly Part thereof for lawfully generated sewage located at 4700 Sicard Hollow Road, Vestavia
H £L sf ifrB6duES L,? *' VeStavia Sp0rtS Park Survey> as recorded « Map Book131. page 54 in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama (the "Premises") in
accordance with all [applicable federa., state and local laws, regulations, rules, and ordinance
ir eluding, without limitation, the rules duly and regularly established from time to time and on
fi ewith the Alabama State Department of Health and/or the Jefferson County Department offi

Hiealth

, f t0"2; Te™ "f Sewer Serv.ce. Sewer Service under this Agreement shall begin
on the date hereof, and continue until terminated by either party to this Agreement upon givL
h, other party fifteen (15) days' prior written notice of such termination unless faTer

rminated ,n accordance with Section 11 of this Agreement. In the event Cus ome So
gwe Enviro notice of the termination of this Agreement due to asale of the Premises Customer
shall remain ob.igated under this Agreement and liable for all fees, charges andTsimenls due
hereunder until such; time as the new owner of the Premises has entered into aag" mnwt
Enviro for Sewer Service to the Premises. It is specifically agreed that upon the full execution
njl recordation of th,s Agreement, the Commercial Sewer Service Agreement with ™ to
h,; Premises dated September 15, 1996, by and between Enviro and Customer shaH be

te.mmated and shall be of no further force or effect. ^-""omer, snail be

agree! thai tt SCr S7iCe Fr! PaYmen> THm°f- CuStomer hereby acknowledges
not TuT / lng feeS and any 0ther amoun,s due hereunder are in addition to andno nheu of, any sums paid to any commercial owners' associations (or any other person oren|.ty) for costs or other expenses relating to die Utility System: P

A- iMFges- For all existing, newly constructed and/or remodeled or renovatedbusings and other structures or improvements on the Premises, Customer shTpay tXviro
2



a: Enviro's principal office, the sewer tap fees applicable to the Premises or such other fees as
determined by Enviro on acase by case basis, in its sole discretion ("Sewer Tap Fees"), unless
a1applicable Sewer Tap Fees have been previously paid in full. Enviro may, in Enviro's sole
discretion, amend, modify or change the Sewer Tap Fees relating to future obligations between
Enviro and the Customer at any time and from time to time. All said amendments
modifications or changes to the Sewer Tap Fees shall become effective on the date designated
by Enviro. j

i
I

B- Monthly Sewer Fees. Customer shall pay to Enviro, at Enviro's principal
ofice, the monthly jsewer use fees applicable to Sewer Service delivered to the Premises or
such other fees as determined by Enviro on a case by case basis, and amended, modified or
changed by Enviro jat any time and from time to time, all in Enviro's sole discretion (the
"Monthly Sewer Fees"), commencing on the date of this Agreement, and continuing on the
first day of each successive moth thereafter during the term of this Agreement. In the event
this Agreement is d.ated other than the first day of the month, the applicable Monthly Sewer
Fie shall be prorateji from the date of this Agreement to the first day of the following month.
All said amendments, modifications or changes to the Monthly Sewer Fees shall become
eifective on the date Enviro notifies Customer thereof or at such later time as designated by
Eiviro. Monthly bills shall be rendered to Customer, in arrears, for the Monthly Sewer Fees
ard mailed to the address of the Premises set forth herein. The Monthly Sewer Fees shall be
due and payable to Enviro at its principal office upon receipt by Customer of the monthly bill
therefor and shall bfecome delinquent if not paid by Customer within fifteen (15) days of the
date of mailing.

C- Interest on Delinquent Monthly Sewer Fees; Sewer Assessments. Any Monthly
Sewer Fees received by Enviro more than fifteen (15) days after the date of mailing of the
monthly bill therefor; shall be delinquent and shall accrue simple interest at the lesser of eighteen
percent (18%) per annum or the highest rate which may be charged to Customer by law from
arid after the fifteenth (15) day past the due date of any such Monthly Sewer Fees until the same
is paid in full. Any delinquent Monthly Sewer Fees, together with such accrued interest are
herein collectively referred to as a "Sewer Assessment".

D- Special Sewer Assessments. Customer further agrees to pay to Enviro any and
extraordinary costs incurred by Enviro in the delivery of Sewer Service to the Premises

anti/or any repairs or replacement of parts, components, equipment or material required due to
damage to the Utility System caused by Customer, as set forth in a written notice from Enviro
to Customer, including, without limitation, any costs incurred by Enviro due to Customer's
violation or breach of the provisions of Section 13 below. Any payment of such costs received

Enviro more than fifteen (15) days after the date of the mailing of such notice shall be
inquent and shall accrue simple interest at die same rate as stated above in Section 3.C. until
d in full. Such delinquent payment, together with such accrued interest, is herein
lectively referred to as a "Special Sewer Assessment".

all

by
de

pa

co



SiE^B$ril£iB attorneys'fees-court cos*and a"—e«S

™tomers whose land use and operations „' simJto E 5STSIS^

v SeCti°".4: iUse a"d Tvpe of Samr Sgrv,V° All Sewer Service delivered under thkAgreement sha b^ used only for the following purposes and only at the Premises The ,el
Sewer Service", as used in this Agreement, shall mean and refer to the cXtTon ££2
nd d,sposal from he Premises of domestic wastes only, such as wate-caStSm^S

or vegetab.e wastes, generated solely in connection with human consumption aTiS
I'Th P^miSeS' SUbjeCt t0 a" aPP,icabIe federaI> «ate and locallaw reZ" "sniles and ordinances and subject to any reasonable policies as set forth from timeTtoe bv

hnv.ro. Customerjshal. not use the Sewer Service delivered hereunder for Ipo™ ng^o ™torm
water, a,r cond.t.oner condensate, ground water, roof drains and/or large quanSoS
P^eZmXtr8 P00,S> M" ^ - —- diosa,J^

hereto in under through or upon the Premises that may be reasonably required by EnvTr" o
ay qualified bu.ldmg contractor at any time and from time to time for the delivej of Sewer
Sawce to the Premises (excluding any gravity or force mains located in easemeJ^dT^
Zt 'I' " depiCt6d '" EXhibk "A"' a"aChed heret0 and i-orporated toefn by-rence. Such machinery, equipment, appliances and appurtenances thereto shall be installed
Customer in conformity with the requirements of Enviro and all applicable federal, state
ilocal laws regulations rules and ordinances. As apre-requisite to Enviro's obligation to
iver Sewer Service to the Premises, Enviro shall have the right to review and approve"he

ans and specifications for all improvements on the Premises for Sewer Service purLT In
sevent Env.ro, in its sole discretion, determines that the operation of the facilities on the
2riBSrSe' T fatS> 0US " °,her SUbStanC6S fa Such amounts" tcr.ate the likelihood of damage or obstruction to the Utility System, Enviro may in its sole
discretion, require Customer to install, own, inspect and maintain in good workfng ort L
accordance with Enviro's requirements, specific types of systems for the pre-freatment of Lh
substances, including, without limitation, grease traps, grease interceptors, septic tanks, and/or
chwn.cal treatment systems (collectively, "Pre-Treatment Customer System") as applicable

reference

by
and

deliver

pl
th



!

^A^^^SSS KtT'.-^ - -** and("eluding an'y Low pl"'^' hw- Rations, 2s fnd "J"™"*'* of Enviro S an
Property 0f i„viro and ?"S™y. «rav"y or force mains locat^ • "' Under- th™gh or
^ugh or uP „the ,££ £*; **.low feitl'Crwhich« £
to prompdy notify Enviro of.„ y)' Notwith«anding the foZZ „"* located in> underaware, to the portion"T^ '%£?«* or^»J??ifr***«£'"^-.owP^^^^ated in, .i^Sr^

fi- Low Pressure fn

c- Pre-1W mgtne Premises, ifany

Ze^*^^ (hat
t0 Enys inspf» ia'-^S2.Custo-s--'S'SoSS^S

in«pect ail m^Z^^^- E™iro shall w A .

^tem.asappHcab,,"3' L™ P~e CuStomer ^ £*-to^^J*
„ ,. | yPre'Treatoent CustomS
Section 7 a

, i Secdpns^ Wea*.^ Agreement.



Customer hereby agrees that Enviro shall have no duty to test the meters installed bv the
applicable water utility and shall have no liability with respect to the accuracy thereof

Section 9. befault in Volume of Sewer Service Beinfi Trm#PH
i

A. Customer shall not cause or permit water, sewage or any other effluent of anv
s,"J5"r° nth? vti,ity Sysrpursuant to this a^"- - -- oconsecutive thirty-day (30-day) average of four thousand nine hundred twentv-seven (4 <m\

szzzstr* 3o-Da'now —••>• - *•— ----s
i

B. If Customer's actual flow exceeds the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation foriree (3) consecutive thirty-day (30-day) periods, Enviro shall have the rigta,7SS?<S>
days written notice to Customer, to shut off or disconnect the Customer's lewer Servke and
discontinue any sewage treatment service to Customer until such time as Enviro is satisfied that
bvTnv" °an rtly Wi,h Ae AV6rage 3°-Day Fl0W Limitation- NotwiflurtaKCS^Sby Env.ro, mthe fvent prior to the expiration of such thirty-day (30-day) period (i) upon
Customer's wr.t,e„|request, Enviro determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that here""
efficient addmona Unreserved Capacity (as herein defined) in the Utility Sy tem and (i
Customer enters mo an amendment to this Agreement, on the same terms and conditfons s"
Tth hfe»! (excepts to rates and fees, which shall not be more than then beSSt
T f'bscr*fs>' 4r an ^ount of additional capacity sufficient to accommodate Customer's
anti, fTh( idditi°nal CapaCity,,)' *" Envir° wUI continue *Provides w« SerWceanticipated by th.s Agreement, as amended. In no event, however" shall Customer's exiltin,
capacuy together v^ith such Additional Capacity, exceed one hundred twenty pe^cn, 120%?
0 the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation. For purposes of this Agreement me term

preserved Capacity" shall mean and refer to, at any point in time, the maximum ga lonag™
01 sewage the then existing Utility System can treat per day, pursuant to all applicable S
Imitations and requirements and all other applicable governmental laws, regulations rules and
oidinances, mexcess of the then existing, reserved and contemplated daily glonage
requirements of the Development. y gtnonage

If Enviro determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that there is not
ffic.ent add.t.onal preserved Capacity in the Utility System to provide Customer with any
bd.t.onal Capac.ty, as set forth in Section 9.B. above, Enviro will use reasonable good faith

SU

Additional

eforts to expand th? Utility System (the "Expansion") to provide the Additional Capacity to
Customer subject to all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and
provided Customer Days its pro rata share of the capital costs of the Expansion attributable to
tn< Additional Capacity, including related infrastructure and effluent disposal spray field
sy items. Customer's pro rata share of the Expansion will be determined by dividing the
™r f?HPa,CT^*ycthe °Vera" daUy ga"0nage CapaCity Provided *>y the Expansion. Forexample if the Ut.l.ty System ,s expanded by 10,000 gallons per day, pursuant to this Section
n;;w!e Addlt!?naI CaPacity is 2'000 g8"0"* P« day, Customer will pay twenty percent
(20%) of the capital icosts of the Expansion. In this event, Enviro and Customer will amend



ths Agreement to provide for the Additional Capacity on the same terms and conditions set
fo-th herein, except JEnviro will waive any tap fees associated with the Additional Capacity.
Customer will thereafter pay monthly use fees on its existing capacity and the Additional
Opacity at the then Applicable rates, as such rates may be modified or revised by Enviro from
tine to time.

D. If Enjiro is unable for any reason, notwithstanding its reasonable good faith
efibrts, to expand the Utility System to provide Customer the Additional Capacity, then, within
thirty (30) days after! written notice to Customer of such determinations, Customer shall submit
to Enviro evidence (satisfactory to Enviro, in its reasonable discretion, that Customer can
comply with the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation. IfCustomer fails to provide such evidence
to Enviro within siich thirty-day (30-day) period, then Enviro, in its sole and absolute
discretion, may either (i) shut off or disconnect Customer's Sewer Service and discontinue any
sewage treatment service to Customer, or (ii) subject Customer's monthly use fees for Sewer
Service to a monthly surcharge equal to the sum of (x) Customer's average monthly use fees
ovsr the most recentj 12-month period multiplied times (y) a factor often (10), until Customer
saiisfies Enviro that Customer can comply with the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation.

Section 10. { Interruptions or Delays in Sewer Service. Enviro shall use all
reasonable care in Iproviding constant and uninterrupted Sewer Service to Customer.
Notwithstanding the poregoing, Enviro hereby reserves the right to interrupt or reduce Sewer
Service at any time and from time to time in the event ofemergencies, to perform inspections,
to maintain, repair jor upgrade the Utility System, or to perform any other obligation or
exercise any other right of Enviro under this Agreement. Enviro hereby agrees that, whenever
practicable, Enviro will give Customer advance notice of any such planned interruption or
reduction, stating thei reason therefor, and the probable duration thereof.

Section 11. Remedies for Default. Enviro may, in its sole discretion, terminate this
Agreement and discontinue Sewer Service hereunder within fifteen (15) days after the date of
mailing written noticp to Customer ofCustomer's failure to comply with any provision of this
Agreement. In the eyent of termination of this Agreement, Enviro shall have the right to enter
upon and remove from the Premises, at Customer's sole expense, any meter, equipment or
oil er property of Enviro relating to Sewer Service. If any payment required hereunder,
including without limitation, any Monthly Sewer Fee, Sewer Assessment or Special Sewer
Assessment, is not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date thereof, Enviro may, in its sole
and absolute discretion, make written demand on Customer for any such delinquent payment or
payments. If any such delinquent payment or payments is/are not paid in full within fifteen
(1*) days after the making of such demand, Enviro may, in its sole and absolute discretion, file
foi record in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, a claim of lien against the
Premises in the amount of such delinquent payment or payments hereunder, plus applicable
interest and attorneys'' fees, court costs and all other expenses paid or incurred by Enviro in its
attempts to collect such delinquent payment or payments due hereunder. Such claim of lien
may, in Enviro's sole and absolute discretion, be foreclosed in the same manner as a
foieclosure of a mortgage on real property, with power of sale, under the laws of the State of



Alabama, and Enviro shall have the right and power to bid at any such foreclosure sale and to
purchase, acquire, hold, lease, mortgage, convey and sell the Premises.

Section 12.1 Indemnity and Release. Customer, for itself, its heirs, successors,
lessees and assigns
defend and hold

hereby releases and forever discharges, and further agrees to indemnify,
harmless, Enviro, its members, managers, employees, independent

contractors, successors and assigns, from all loss, claim, damage and expense of every nature
(including attorneys' fees) to which Enviro, or any of them, may be subject arising out of, or
connected with the performance of this Agreement, including but not limited to, any loss
claim, damage or expense arising out of the negligence of Customer or Customer's agents]
irvitees or licensees or arising out ofabreach by Customer of any term or condition of this
Agreement, unless iuch loss, claim, damage, or expense is caused by the sole negligence or
willful misconduct df Enviro or Enviro's agents or employees.

Section 13. Contamination or Damage by Customer to Utility System. Customer
hereby agrees Customer shall not place or deposit, or permit to be placed or deposited, in any
portion of the Utility System any material other than domestic waste, including, without
limitation, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes or substances, as such terms may be defined
frDrn time to timej by any applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations, rules or
oidinances. Customer further agrees to use all reasonable care to prevent any damage or
obstruction of any portion of the Utility System. In the event Customer violates or breaches
the provisions of this Section 13, the provisions of Section 3.D. above shall become applicable.

, Section 14. Modification of Agreement by Parties. Except as otherwise provided in
this Section and Section 15 of this Agreement, this Agreement may not be modified, amended,
supplemented, changed or waived, unless such waiver or modification is in writing and signed
b> the parties hereto and then said waiver or modification shall be effective only in the specific
instance and for the! purpose for which given. No failure or delay on the part of Enviro in
exercising any right,! power or privilege hereunder shall operate as awaiver thereof, nor shall
- Jingle or partial expertise thereof provide any other or further privilege or the exercise of any

ler right, power or privilege.
a

ot

Section 15. I Modification of Agreement by Governmental Authorities. This
Agreement shall at jail times be subject to such changes or modifications as any applicable
governing authority may, from time to time, direct in the exercise of its authority.

Section 16. jAssignment. Customer shall not assign this Agreement, or any rights
unjder this Agreemerjt. Customer expressly agrees Enviro may assign this Agreement and any
rights or obligations! under this Agreement to any person, firm, corporation, partnership or
other entity. \



Section 17.

Section 18.

. —Governing Law; Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed
11 accordance with governed by, and enforced under the laws of the State of Alabama. This
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and any prior oral or
vritten agreement, understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date of this
Agreement shall not be binding on either party except to the extent incorporated in this
Agreement.

Notices. Unless other expressly provided herein, all notices and other
communications urider this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given to the
party to whom notice is to be given three (3) business days after any notice or other
communication hereunder has been deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid or
receipt through personal hand delivery. All notices and other communications hereunder shall
bb addressed to th^ parties at the addresses first set forth above (or at such other address as
sich party may designate by notice given to the other party pursuant hereto).

Section 19. Binding Arbitration; Limitation of Rights to Bring Court Action
Enviro and Customer agree that all claims, disputes and controversies arising out of or relating
in any way to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including claims for equitable
relief or claims based on contract, tort, statute, or any alleged breach, default, negligence
Wantonness, fraud,
ectent permitted by

misrepresentation, suppression of fact, or inducement, will to the fullest
state and federal law be resolved by binding arbitration, administered by

tie American Arbitration Association (the "AAA"), under its Commercial Arbitration Rules
currently in effect,! unless Enviro and Customer expressly agree otherwise. Enviro and
Customer expressly acknowledge and stipulate that this Agreement involves interstate
commerce, as such term is defined in connection with the Federal Arbitration Act.

Any challenges to the validity or enforceability of this Section 19 shall be determined
the arbitrator(s)

of the AAAriles
in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act and the

Enviro and Customer hereby elect to resolve all claims, disputes and
controversies by arbitration rather than judicial process. It is understood that the parties
voluntarily have chcjsen to arbitrate any disputes in lieu of resolving disputes by ajury trial or
*trial in court. Enpiro and Customer understand that the rules applicable to arbitrations and

rights of parties| in arbitrations differ from the rules and rights applicable in court Any
rd rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in any

having jurisdiction thereof.

Covenants Running with the Land; Binding Effect. Customer agrees
shall be held, owned, sold, transferred, conveyed, hypothecated,

the

award

court

th

Section 20.

theat the Premises

er cumbered, leased( occupied, built upon and otherwise used, improved and maintained
subject to the superior rights, terms and conditions of this Agreement, which terms and
conditions shall constitute covenants that run with the land and with the title to the Premises
The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of*
the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.



Section 21. Recording of Agreement; Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement
shall be recorded in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. By such recording or
otherwise, no third party shall have any right, title or interest whatsoever in the enforcement of
aly of the provisions of this Agreement or the right to consent to or approve any amendment
or modification hereof.

IS OTICE TO CUSTOMER: This is alegally binding contract that provides, among other
things, that Enviro, has a right to file a lien against your property as provided in Section
11 above. If you do not un
legal advice before signing.

Labove. If you do not understand the legal effect of any part of this Agreement, seek

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, or have
caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized representatives, under seal on the
d ite and year first written above.

j ENVIRO:

ENVIRO SERVICES, LLC, an Alabama
limited liability company

By:
Samuel G. Lowrey, III
Its Vice President

CUSTOMER:

.(Seal)

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

By:
Alberto Zaragoza
Its Mayor

(Seal)

ATTEST:

Its:

10



STATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify that
Simuel G. Lowrey, III, whose name as Vice President of Enviro Services, LLC, an Alabama
limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me,
acknowledged before me that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such
officer and with full!

liability company.
authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said limited

Given under my hand and official seal on this the day of

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

, 2012.

S^ATE OF ALABAMA

JEFFERSON COUNTY

that

minici

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify
Alberto Zaragoza, whose name as Mayor of City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an Alabama

__ .icipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me,
acknowledged beforfe me that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such
officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said
corporation.

Given under my hand and official seal on this the day of

11

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

2012.



r t "*

EXHIBIT "A"

DEPICTION

12



.. ^c.&);%^-t#?&:?':?£$*-%•<&>•V*-"- *



f I «

iviro Services, l.L.C.
800

Vest

Ph

] Liberty Parkway, Suite 114
avia Hills, Alabama 35242

: (205)945-6430 Fax: (205)945-6455one

Bill To:

Cit/ of Vestavia
Pojst Office Box 66'0854
Vekavia Hills, Alabama 35242

TERMS

INVOICE
DATE: 6/12/2012

ID: Sports Park

INVOICE #

SP-061212

• ~ ^~\__• PayableTri fullubon reoeipt AHoling, ^hf^hnr '̂r of t:5%
per ifionthwjil be charged for all past due balances".

DESCRIPTION

Additional Sewer Capacity per Sewer Agteement3,677 gpd.

Currant Tap Fees =$15.50 per gallon of Allotment

3,677* $15.50 = $56,993.50

BALANCE DUE

REMITTANCE ADDRESS:

8000 Liberty Parkway, Suite 114
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242

AMOUNT

56,993.50

56,993.50



SXATEOKALABAMA W^O^SSX '
JEFFERSON COUNTY

tFORMREVJSfONDATE0«A)1«>5 -2"»E<Ktioi»)

ENVIRO SERVICES, L.L.C.
COMMERaAL SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT ANDCOVENANTS

AND RIGHT OF LIEN FOR SEWER ASSESSMENTS

THIS COMMERCIAL SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT AND COVENANTS
AND RIGHT OF LIEN FOR SEWER ASSESSMENTS ("this Agreement") is made and
entered into as of ^^ «T* , 2011, by and between ENVIRO
SERVICES, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company with its principal office located at
8000 Liberty Parkway, Suite 114, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242 ("Enviro"), and CITY OF
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, an Alabama municipal coiporation, having principal offices
located at 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 ("Customer").

RECITALS

A. Enviro is the owner ofthat certain sewer system within, adjacent or approximate
to the Liberty Park development (i) which includes, without limitation, awaste water treatment
plant system, raw sewage and effluent pump stations, effluent spray absorption field irrigation
system the Low Pressure Sewer System (as hereinafter defined), and any and all other sewage
collection systems, all machinery, equipment, mains, pipes, fixtures, fittings, valves, gravity
sewer mains, manholes, force mains, sewer laterals and appurtenances (u) which is supplying, or
may in the future supply, Sewer Service (as defined herein) to lots, dwellings, buildings,
recreational facilities or other structures located in any residential or commercial subdivisions
within, adjacent or approximate to the Liberty Park development (collectively, the Utility
System").

B For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Low Pressure Sewer System" shall
mean and refer to that certain system ofsmall diameter pressure sewer mains in, on, under or
through the Liberty Park development and properties proximate or adjacent thereto, which is
owned by Enviro and/or for which Enviro has the duty to maintain, repair and replace by
contract assignment, agreement or otherwise, and which is generally comprised of pipes,
fittings and valves constituting a"Low Pressure Sewer Main". The Low Pressure Sewer System
begins at the point at which any Low Pressure Sewer Main discharges into agravity sewer main
ofthe Utility System, and ends at the point at which any low pressure sewer lateral serving any
property within the Liberty Park development connects with any Low Pressure Sewer Mam
(typically adjacent to the front property line ofthe applicable property).

C For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Low Pressure Customer System"
shall mean and refer to the low pressure sewer lateral(s) and grinder pump or similar appliance
etodTereto, if any, that are owned by Customer, and for which the Customer has the duty to

maintain, repair and replace, located in, under or upon the Premises (as hereinafter defined),
I



subject to Section 6.B below. Tlie Low Pressure Customer System located in, under or upon tlie
Premises, ifany, begins at the point at which the low pressure sewer lateral installed at on, in or
under the Premises connects with the Low Pressure Sewer Main, and ends at (and includes) the
related grinder pump or similar appliance installed at, on, in or under the Premises, ifany.

D. Customer desires to obtain, and Enviro desires to deliver, Sewer Service upon the
termsandconditions contained herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Agreement toSell and Purchase. Enviro shall sell and deliver toCustomer,
and Customer shall purchase from Enviro, during the term of this Agreement, all Sewer Service
(as defined herein) which Customer shall require on Customer's premises or any part thereof for
lawfully generated sewage located at 4851 Sicard Hollow Road 35242, described as follows:

Lot 1, Vestavia Sports Park Survey, 2nd Sector, as recorded in Map Book 231,
page 66, in the Probate Office ofJefferson County, Alabama.

the ("Premises"), in accordance with all applicable federal, state and locd laws, regulations,
rules and ordinances, including, without limitation, the rules duly and regularly established from
time'to time and on file with the Alabama State Department of Health and/or the Jefferson
County Department of Health.

It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties that Enviro's delivery of Sewer
Service to the Premises is subject to and conditioned upon the execution, delivery and
recordation of an easement from Glenwood, Inc., in form ***W ***^T*
Enviro's sole discretion, in favor of Enviro and Customer, pursuant to the letter attached
hereto as Exhibit «'A".

Sftriinn 2. Term nfSewer Service. Sewer Service under this Agreement shall begin on
the date hereof, and continue until terminated by either party to this Agreement upon giving the
other party fifteen (15) days' prior written notice of such termination, unless earlier terminated in
Sa^v^ Section 11 ofthis Agreement In the event Customer fails to give Enviro notice?£^*n of mis Agreement due to asale of the Premises, Customer shall =
oblteateduX this Agreement and liable for all fees, charges and assessments due hereunder£m*£'«£TSw owner ofthe Premises has entered into aagreement with Enviro for-
SewerService to the Premises.

g.^,, a. Sewer Ser^»*-»' »--*Thereof, ^omer hereby acknowledges and
aerees that the following fees and any other amounts due hereunder are in addition to, rtMtiiS,tyiums £Tto any commercial owners' associations {or any other person or enUty) for
costs or other expenses relating to the Utility System:

A Tan Fees. For all existing, newly constructed and/or ^ele4 °r renowted
building! and ttelSuctures on the Premises, Customer shall pay to Envao, at Enviros



principal office, the sewer tap fees applicable to the Premises or such other fees as determined by
Enviro on a case by case basis, in its sole discretion ("Sewer Tap Fees") on or before the
acceptance by Enviro ofthat certain Application for Sewer Service entered into between Enviro
and Customer, ifapplicable (the "Application"), unless all applicable Sewer Tap Fees have been
paid in full by abuilder, contractor or previous owner ofthe Premises. Enviro may, in Enviro's
sole discretion, amend, modify or change the Sewer Tap Fees relating to future obligations
between Enviro and the Customer at any time and from time to time. All said amendments,
modifications or changes to the Sewer Tap Fees shall become effective on the date designated by
Enviro.

B. Monthly Sewer Fees. Customer shall pay to Enviro, at Enviro's principal office,
the monthly sewer use fees applicable to Sewer Service delivered to the Premises or such other
fees as determined by Enviro on acase by case basis, and amended, modified or changed by
Enviro at any time and from time to time, all in Enviro's sole discretion (the "Monthly Sewer
Fees"), commencing on the date of this Agreement, and continuing on the first day of each
successive moth thereafter during the term ofthis Agreement In the event this Agreement is
dated other than the first day ofthe month, the applicable Monthly Sewer Fee shall be prorated
from tlie date ofthis Agreement to the first day ofthe Mowing month. Ail said amendments,
modifications or changes to the Monthly Sewer Fees shall become effective on the date Enviro
notifies Customer thereof or at such later time as designated by Enviro. Monthly bills shall be
rendered to Customer, in arrears, for the Monthly Sewer Fees and mailed to the address ofthe
Premises set forth herein. The Monthly Sewer Fees shall be due and payable to Enviro at its
principal office upon receipt by Customer of the monthly bill therefor and shall become
delinquent ifnot paid by Customer within fifteen (15) days ofthe date ofmailing.

C. Interest on Delinquent Monthly Sewer Fees: Sewer Assessments, Any Monthly
Sewer Fees received by Enviro more than fifteen (15) days after the date of mailing ofthe
monthly bill therefor shall be delinquent and shall accrue simple interest at the lesser of eighteen
percent (18%) per annum or the highest rate which may be charged to Customer by law, from and
after the fifteenth (15) day past the due date ofany such Monthly Sewer Fees until the same is
paid in full. Any delinquent Monthly Sewer Fees, together with such accrued interest, are herein
collectively referred toas a"Sewer Assessment".

D Special Sewer Assessments. Customer further agrees to pay to Enviro any and all
extraordinary costs incurred by Enviro in the dehvery ofSewer Service to the Premises and/or any
repairs or replacement ofparts, components, equipment or material required due to damage to the
Utility System caused by Customer, as set forth in awritten notice from Enviro to Customer,
including, without limitation, any costs incurred by Enviro due to Customer's violation or breach
ofthe provisions ofSection 13 below. Any payment of such costs received by Envxro more than
fifteen (15) days after the date ofthe mailing ofsuch notice shaU be delinquent and shall accrue
simple interest at the same rate as stated above in Section 3.C. until paid in full. Such delinquent
payment, together with such accrued interest, is herein collectively referred to as a Special Sewer
Assessment".

E finmanf Enforcement In the event Enviro employs an attorney or otherwise takes
any legal' action in attempting to collect any payments due hereunder or otherwise enforce this



Agreement, Customer shall pay all attorneys* fees, court costs and all odier expenses paid or
incurred by Enviroin such efforts.

F. Consistency of Charges. All fees andcharges payable pursuant to this Section 3
shall be generally consistent with such fees and charges being charged by Enviro to other of its
sewer customers whose land use and operations are similar to those of the Customer on the
Premises.

Section 4. Use and Tvne of Sewer Service. All Sewer Service delivered under this
Agreement shall be used only for the following purposes and only at the Premises. The term
"Sewer Service", as used inthis Agreement, shall mean and refer to the collection, treatment and
disposal from the Premises of domestic wastes only, such as water-carried human, animal or
vegetable wastes, generated solely in connection with human consumption and emanating solely
from the Premises, subject to all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, rules and
ordinances and subject to any reasonable policies as set forth from tune to time by Enviro.
Customer shall not use the Sewer Service delivered hereunder for disposing of storm water, air
conditioner condensate, ground water, roof drains and/or large quantities of water such as may
occur from swimming pools, or for any other ^authorized disposal purposes as reasonably
determined by Enviro.

Section 5. Installation of Equipment bv Customer. Customer, at Customer's expense,
shall furnish, install and own all machinery, equipment, appliances and appurtenances thereto in,
under, through or upon the Premises that may be reasonably required by Enviro or any qualified
building contractor at any time and from time to time for the delivery of Sewer Service to the
Premises (excluding any gravity or force mains located in easements which are the property of
Enviro) as depicted in Exhibit "B", attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such
machinery, equipment, appliances and appurtenances thereto shall be installed by Customer in
conformity with the requirements of Enviro and all applicable federal, state and local laws,
regulations, rules and ordinances. As apre-requisite to Enviro's obligation to deliver Sewer
Service to the Premises, Enviro shall have the right to review and approve the plans and
specifications for all improvements on the Premises for Sewer Service purposes. In the event
Enviro, in its sole discretion, determines that the operation ofthe facilities on tlie Premises may
produce grease, tallow, fats, oils or other substances in such amounts as to create the likelihood
of damage or obstruction to the Utility System, Enviro may, in its sole discretion, require
Customer to install, own, inspect and maintain in good working order, in accordance with
Enviro's requirements, specific types of systems for the pre-treatment of such substances,
including, without limitation, grease traps, grease interceptors, septic tanks, and/or chemical
treatment systems (collectively, "Pre-Treatment Customer System"), as applicable.

Section6. Maintenance Duties of Customer^ Right of Inspection.

A Customer Maintenance. Customer, at Customer's expense, shall maintain and keep
in good and safe condition in accordance with the requirements of Enviro and all applicable
federal state and local laws, regulations, rules and ordinances, all plumbing systems (including
any Low Pressure Customer System, as applicable), located in, under, through or upon the
Premises (excluding any gravity or force mains located in easements which are the property of



Enviro and that portion of theLowPressure Sewer System located in,under, through or upon the
Premises, if any). Notwitlistanding the foregoing, Customer hereby agrees to promptly notify
Enviro of any necessary orappropriate repairs, ofwhich Customer becomes aware, totheportions
ofthe Utility System, located in, under, through orupon thePremises, including theLowPressure
Sewer System, ifany.

B. Low Pressure Customer System Maintenance. Customer acknowledges that
Customer shall be fully responsible for inspection, maintenance, repair and replacement of the
Low Pressure Customer System owned by Customer and serving the Premises, ifany.

C. Pre-Treatmeiit Customer System. Customer further acknowledges that Customer
shall be folly responsible for the inspection, maintenance, repair and replacement of any Pre-
Treatment Customer System, as may be required by Enviro pursuant to Section 5 above.
Customer shall also maintain accurate records of the inspection, maintenance, repair and
replacement of any such Pre-Treatment Customer System, which records shall be subject to
Enviro's inspection at allreasonable times.

D. Right ofInspection. Enviro shall have the right, but not the obligation, to
inspect all machinery, equipment, appliances and appurtenances on the Premises that are
associated with Enviro's delivery of Sewer Service as set forth in this Agreement, including,
without limitation, any Low Pressure Customer System and any Pre-Treatment Customer
System, asapplicable.

Section 7. Access to Premises. Customer, for itself, its heirs, successors, and permitted
assigns, hereby grants to Enviro, its mangers, employees, agents, independent contractors and
assigns, an irrevocable and transferable license to enter upon the Premises, at all normal business
hours and otherwise in the event of emergencies, for any purpose relating to fhe delivery of
Sewer Service under this Agreement or the exercise of any rights secured to, or the performance
ofany obligations imposed upon Enviro bythis Agreement.

Section 8. Measurement of Sewer Service. If the quantity of Sewer Service is
determined by water usage measured by meters installed by the applicable water utility on the
Premises, subject to Section 9 below, the quantity of Sewer Service determined by said meter
shall be final and conclusive, except when the meters fail to register, or if an error in meter
reading occurs. In such cases, the quantity delivered during die period in question shall be
estimated after due consideration of previous or subsequent properly measured Sewer Service.
Customer hereby agrees that Enviro shall have no duty to test the meters installed by the
applicable water utility and shall have no liability with respect to the accuracy thereof.

Section 9. Default in Volume of Sewer Service Being Treated.

A. Customer shall not cause or permit water, sewage or any other effluent of any
character to enter into the Utility System, pursuant to this Agreement, in excess ofaconsecutive
thirty-day (30-day) average ofOne Thousand Six Hundred Fifty (1,650) gallons per day (the
"Average 30-Day Flow Limitation"), as determined in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement



B. If Customer's actual flow exceeds the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation for three
(3) consecutive thirty-day (30-day) periods, Enviro shall have the right, on thirty (30) days'
written notice to Customer, to shut off or disconnect the Customer's Sewer Service and
discontinue any sewage treatment service to Customer until-such time as Enviro is satisfied that
Customer can comply with the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation. Notwithstanding such right by
Enviro, in the event prior to the expiration of such thirty-day (30-day) period, (i) upon
Customer's written request, Enviro determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that there is
sufficient additional Unreserved Capacity (as herein defined) in the Utility System and (ii)
Customer enters into an amendment to this Agreement, on the same terms and conditions set
forth herein (except as to rates and fees, which shall not be more than then being charged to new
subscribers), for an amount ofadditional capacity sufficient to accommodate Customer's actual
flow ("Additional Capacity"), then Enviro will continue to provide the Sewer Services
anticipated by this Agreement, as amended. In no event, however, shall Customer's existing
capacity, together with such Additional Capacity, exceed one hundred twenty percent (120%) of
the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation. For purposes ofthis Agreement, the term "Unreserved
Capacity" shall mean and refer to, at any point in time, the maximum gallonage ofsewage- the
then existing Utility System can treat per day, pursuant to all applicable permit limitations and
requirements and all other applicable governmental laws, regulations, rules and ordinances, in
excess of the then existing, reserved and contemplated daily gallonage requirements of the
Development

C. If Enviro determines, inits sole and absolute discretion, that there isnot sufficient
additional Unreserved Capacity in the Utility System to provide Customer with any Additional
Capacity, as set forth in Section 9.B. above, Enviro will use reasonable good faith efforts to
expand the Utility System (the "Expansion") to provide the Additional Capacity to Customer,
subject to all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and provided
Customer pays its pro rata share of the capital costs of the Expansion attributable to the
Additional Capacity, including related infrastructure and effluent disposal spray field systems.
Customer's pro rata share of the Expansion will be determined by dividing the Additional
Capacity by the overall daily gallonage capacity provided by the Expansion. For example, ifthe
Utility System is expanded by 10,000 gallons per day, pursuant to this Section 9.C., and the
Additional Capacity is 2,000 gallons per day, Customer will pay twenty percent (20%) ofthe
capital costs ofthe Expansion. In this event, Enviro and Customer will amend this Agreement to
provide for the Additional Capacity on the same terms and conditions set forth herein, except
Enviro will waive any tap fees associated with the Additional Capacity. Customer will thereafter
pay monthly use fees on its existing capacity and the Additional Capacity at the then applicable
rates, as such rates may be modified or revised by Enviro from time to time.

D If Enviro is unable for any reason, notwitlistanding its reasonable good faith
efforts to expand the Utility System to provide Customer the Additional Capacity, then, within
thirty (30) days after written notice to Customer of such detenninations, Customer shall submit
to Enviro evidence satisfactory to Enviro, in its reasonable discretion, that Customer can comply
with the Average 30-Day Flow Limitation. If Customer fails to provide such evidence to Enviro
within such thirty-day (30-day) period, then Enviro, in its sole and absolute discretion, may
either (i) shut off or disconnect Customer's Sewer Service and discontinue any sewage treatment



service to Customer, or(ii) subject Customer's monthly use fees for Sewer Service to amonthly
surcharge equal to the sum of (x) Customer's average monthly use fees over the most recent 12-
month period multiplied times (y) a factor of ten (10), until Customer satisfies Enviro that
Customer can comply with theAverage 30-Day Flow Limitation.

Section 10. Interruptions or Delays in Sewer Service. Enviro shall use all reasonable
care in providing constant and uninterrupted Sewer Service to Customer. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Enviro hereby reserves the right to interrupt or reduce Sewer Service at any time and
from time to time in the event of emergencies, to perform inspections, to maintain, repair or
upgrade the Utility System, or to perform any other obligation or exercise any other right of
Enviro under this Agreement. Enviro hereby agrees that, whenever practicable, Enviro will give
Customer advance notice of any such planned interruption or reduction, stating the reason
therefor, and the probable duration thereof.

Section 11. Remedies for Default. Enviro may, in its sole discretion, terminate this
Agreement and discontinue Sewer Service hereunder within fifteen (15) days after die date of
mailing written notice to Customer of Customer's failure to comply with any provision ofthis
Agreement In the event of termination of this Agreement, Enviro shall have the right to enter
upon and remove from the Premises, at Customer's sole expense, any meter, equipment or other
property of Enviro relating to Sewer Service. If any payment required hereunder, including
without limitation, any Monthly Sewer Fee, Sewer Assessment or Special Sewer Assessment, is
not paid within thirty (30) days ofthe due date thereof; Enviro may, in its sole and absolute
discretion, make written demand on Customer for any such delinquent payment or payments. If
any such delinquent payment or payments is/are not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the
making of such demand, Enviro may, in its sole and absolute discretion, file for record in the
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, aclaim of lien against the Premises in the amount
ofsuch delinquent payment or payments hereunder, plus applicable interest and attorneys' fees,
court costs and all other expenses paid or incurred by Enviro in its attempts to collect such
delinquent payment or payments due hereunder. Such claim oflien may, in Enviro's sole and
absolute discretion, be foreclosed in the same manner as a foreclosure of a mortgage on real
property, with power ofsale, under the laws ofthe State ofAlabama, and Enviro shall have the
right and power to bid at any such foreclosure sale and to purchase, acquire, hold, lease,
mortgage, convey and sellthe Premises.

Section 12. Indemnity and Release. Customer, for itself, itsheirs, successors, lessees
and assigns hereby releases and forever discharges, and further agrees to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless, Enviro, its members, managers, employees, independent contractors, successors
and assigns, from all loss, claim, damage and expense of every nature (including attorneys' fees)
to which Enviro, or any of them, may be subject arising out of, or connected with the
performance ofthis Agreement, including but not limited to, any loss, claim, damage or expense
arising out of the negligence of Customer or Customer's agents, invitees or licensees or arising
out ofabreach by Customer ofany term or condition ofthis Agreement, unless such loss, claim,
damage, or expense is caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct ofEnviro or Enviro's
agents oremployees.



Section 13. Contamination or Damage bv Customer to Utility System. Customer
hereby agrees Customer shall not place or deposit, or permit to be placed or deposited, inany
portion of the Utility System any material other than domestic waste, including, without
limitation, hazardous, toxic or radioactive wastes or substances, as such terms may be defined
from time to timeby any applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations, rules or ordinances.
Customer further agrees to use all reasonable care to prevent any damage or obstruction of any
portion ofthe Utility System. In the event Customer violates or breaches the provisions ofthis
Section 13, the provisions of Section 3.D. above shall become applicable.

Section 14. Modification of Agreement bv Parties. Except as otherwise provided in
this Section and Section 15 of this Agreement, this Agreement may notbe modified, amended,
supplemented, changed or waived, unless such waiver or modification is in writing and signed by
the parties hereto and then said waiver or modification shall be effective only in the specific
instance and for the purpose for which given. No failure or delay on the part of Enviro in
exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as awaiver thereof, nor shall a
single or partial exercise thereof provide any other or further privilege or the exercise of any
otherright, poweror privilege.

Section 15. Modification of Agreement bv Governmental Authorities. This
Agreement shall at all times be subject to such changes or modifications as any applicable
governing authority may, from time to time, direct inthe exercise ofits authority.

Section 16. Assignment. Customer shall notassign this Agreement, oranyrights under
this Agreement Customer expressly agrees Enviro may assign this Agreement and any rights or
obligations under this Agreement to any person, firm, corporation, partnership or other entity.

Section 17. Governing Law; Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Application
shall be construed inaccordance with, governed by, and enforced under the laws ofthe State of
Alabama. This Agreement and the Application constitutes the entire agreement between the
parties hereto and any prior oral or written agreement, understanding or representation of any
kind preceding the dates ofthis Agreement and the Application shall not be binding on either
party except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement. In the event ofaconflict between the
terms ofthe Application and this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern.

Section 18. Notices. Unless other expressly provided herein, all notices and other
communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given to the party
to whom notice is to be given three (3) business days after any notice or other communication
hereunder has been deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid or receipt through
personal hand delivery. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be addressed to
the parties at the addresses first set forth above (or at such other address as such party may
designate by notice given to the other party pursuant hereto).

Section 19. Binding Arbitration! Limitation ofRights to Bring Court Action. Enviro
and Customer agree that all claims, disputes and controversies arising out ofor relating many
way to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including claims for equitable relief or
claims based on contract, tort, statute, or any alleged breach, default, negligence, wantonness,



fraud, misrepresentation, suppression of fact, or inducement, will to the fullest extent permitted
by state and federal law be resolved by binding arbitration, administered by the American
Arbitration Association (the "AAA"), under its Commercial Arbitration Rules currently ineffect,
unless Enviro and Customer expressly agree otherwise. Enviro and Customer expressly
acknowledge and stipulate that this Agreement involves interstate commerce, as such term is
defined in connection with the Federal ArbitrationAct

Any challenges to the validity or enforceability ofthis Section 19 shall be determined by
the arbitrator(s) in accordance with the provisions ofthe Federal Arbitration Act and the rules of
the AAA. Enviro and Customer hereby elect to resolve all claims, disputes and controversies by
arbitration rather than judicial process. It isunderstood that the parties voluntarily have chosen
to arbitrate any disputes in lieu ofresolving disputes by ajury trial or atrial in court. Enviro and
Customer understand that the rules applicable to arbitrations and the rights of parties in
arbitrations differ from the rules and rights applicable in court Any award rendered by the
arbitrators) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon itin any court having jurisdiction
thereof.

Section 20. Covenants Running with theLand: BindingEffect. Customer agrees that
the Premises shall be held, owned, sold, transferred, conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered,
leased, occupied, built upon and otherwise used, improved and maintained subject to the superior
rights, terms and conditions ofthis Agreement, which terms and conditions shall constitute
covenants that run with 1he land and with the title to the Premises. The terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
respective successors and pennitted assigns.

Section 21. Recording of Agreement: Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement
shall be recorded in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. By such recording or
otherwise, no third party shall have any right, title or interest whatsoever in the enforcement of
any ofthe provisions ofthis Agreement or the right to consent to or approve any amendment or
modification hereof.

NOTICE TO CUSTOMER: This is alegally binding contract that provides, among other
things, that Enviro has aright to file alien against your property as provided in Section 11
above. Ifyou do not understand the legal effect ofany part of this Agreement, seek legal
advice before signing.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, or have
caused this Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized representatives, under seal on the
date and yearfirstwritten above.

ENVIRO:

ENVIRO SERVICES, LLC, an Alabama
limitedliability company

Samuel*}. Lowrey, III
Ice President

CUSTOMER:

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALAB

rf< Z%<̂t<
Alberto Zaragoza
Its Mayor

.(Seal)

(Seal)

STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY

I the undersigned, aNotary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify that
Samuel G. Lowrey, HI, whose name as Vice President of Enviro Services, LLC, an Alabama
limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me,
acknowledged before me that, being infoiined of the contents of the instalment, he as such
officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said limited
liability company. .

Given under my hand and official seal on this th©2_ day of _MA.
2011.

10

^-TTT
"WSIotary Public

My Commission Expi \m&-



STATE OF ALABAMA
JEFFERSON COUNTY

I the undersigned, aNotary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify
that Alberto Zaragoza, whose name as Mayor of die City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, an
Alabama municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me,
acknowledged before me that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such
officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act ofsaid municipal
corporation.

Given under my hand and official seal on this the _ll day of ,/ j »2011.

Notary Public Qhil? Of'%
My Commission Expires: JJJzli—J^

11



EXHIBIT «A"

LETTERFROM GLENWOOD, INC.

12

i i



The Autism and Behavioral Healtix Center ofAlabama

UnltadWay
o( CentralAlcbamn.He

;<^n . pu^-pm 969J880 «FAX^OS) 967-1323 »www.glenwood.org
150 Glenwood Lane »Birmingham, AL 35242

January 31,2011

Enviro Services LLC.
8000 LibertyParkway
Suite 110
Birmingham, AL 35242

Attention:

Reference:

Mr. Kenneth Hager

Liberty Park Sports Park Connection to Glenwood, Inc. Force Main

Dear Mr. Hager:

IthascometoouranentiontnattheNewU^
exfctingGlenwoodtowpressuresewerfo^

slenlodllw pressure sewer system which result from the new connection.

Lee main extension across the Glenwood property.

Sincerely,

Glenwood, Inc.



EXHIBIT "B"

DEPICTION

13





Senior Drivers Cash Log Sheet

Date:

Amount Counted:

Signature:

Date:

Amount Received:

Signature:



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2464 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4 AND 5 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 – AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING 
AND CREATING THE ALCOHOL ABUSE EDUCATION 
PROGRAM AND THE TRAFFIC SAFETY EDUCATION 
PROGRAM FOR THE MUNICIPAL COURT OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2464 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, on December 26, 2012, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2427 to establish and create 

the Alcohol Abuse Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program for the 

Municipal Court of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

amend Sections 4 and 5 of said Ordinance Number 2427 to add a fee for rescheduling and 

to reallocate the distribution of funds derived from said program. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SECTIONS 4 

AND 5 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 ARE AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 “4. The Clerk of the Municipal Court shall be responsible for 

scheduling of classes, instructors and facilitators and setting reasonable 

fees for the payment of the instructors and facilitators.  The Clerk of 

Municipal Court shall adopt rules and regulations for the operation of the 

established educational programs, criteria for acceptance and completion 

and established fees for the appropriate program.  These rules and 

regulations, policy and procedures, and fee list shall be readily available 

for public inspection.  If, for any reason, a class needs to be rescheduled or 

cancelled, a penalty of $25.00 shall be charged from fees already 

collected. 



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 2 

 
 
5. All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Alcohol Abuse 

Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program in the form 

of registration fees, evaluation fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained 

in a separate account with the City Finance Department to be distributed 

as follows:  

  (a)  to fully cover the cost of services provided by the 

previously mentioned education programs;  

  (b)  an amount equivalent to Forty Dollars and Fifty Cents 

($40.50) per individual participant to the City’s “Court and Correction 

Fund”; and 

  (c)  an amount equivalent to Ten Dollars ($10.00) per applicant 

to the “Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund”; and  

  (d) an amount equivalent to Thirty Seven Dollars ($37.00) per 

applicant along with all rescheduling fees shall be applied to the City’s 

“General Fund”; and 

  (e)  all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of 

providing various other traffic safety education and awareness programs to 

the Vestavia Hills community through the Traffic Safety Office of the 

Vestavia Hills Police Department or any other police activities including 

training of officers.  The collection and use of these monies shall be under 

the supervision of the Police Chief and Finance Director.” 

 Effective Date:  This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, 

adoption, enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

 Severability:  If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of 

September, 2013. 

 



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2464 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of September, 2013 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 23, 2013
TO: Jeff Downes, City Manager
FROM: Rebecca Leavings. City Clerk

RE: Proposed Amendments to Ordinance Number 2427, Traffic Education

On December 26, 2012 the City Council voted to adopt and approve Ordinance 2427 to
establish a traffic education program for the City. The charge for said program would be $150
per applicant and the proceeds would be distributed as follows: (1) the first $10 would be
deposited to the "Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund"; (2) an amount equivalent to
$55 would be deposited to the City's "Court and Correct Fund; (3) all remaining monies would
be utilized to defer the expenses/payroll of the program and for the purpose of providing various
other traffic safety education and awareness programs and other Police activities.

The program has been a success since its inception. During the budget review, the Mayor
questioned the amount of the proceeds into each program and it was later determined that some
of the proceeds should have been diverted into the City's general fund but was left out of the
Ordinance. Also, the Police Chief has determined that additional funding from this program
could be better utilized for training of Police personnel. Therefore, both myself and Chief Rary
felt a re-write of the Ordinance was needed.

Attached you will find a proposed re-write of the original ordinance that allocates the
proceeds per applicant as follows: (1) an amount equivalent to $10.00 will go to the "Municipal
Court Judicial Administrative Fund;" (2) an amount equivalent to $40.50 will go to the City's
"Court and Correction Fund;** (3) an amount equivalent to $37.00 will go to the City's General
Fund; and (4) the remaining monies will be used for the purpose of providing various traffic
safety education and awareness programs, other police activities including training of officers.

Also attached you will find an expected income distribution for the next fiscal year based
upon enrollment of the program over the past 3 months. If classes are held as they have the past
3 months, the distribution of the monies is anticipated [in yellow] to be as follows: Judicial
Administrative Fund - $6,240; Court and Corrections - $25,272; General Fund - $23,088; Police
Education - 39,000 (netted to $23,400 following defray of expenses). It should be noted in this
reallocation that the amounts delegated to the first three funds would be the same from court
costs if a ticket is paid. The only new funding generated goes to the Police Education/Training
fund. Also, the defendant gets a $30 break in his ticket cost and no points on his license.

This draft also institutes a penalty for a rescheduling or "no show" of the class.

Please review the attached and advise.

Cc: Alberto C. Zaragoza. Mayor
Dan Rary, Police Chief



T
ra

ffic
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

tte
n

d
a
n

c
e

A
b

s
e
n

t

1
7

-M
ay

-1
3

2
6

i
o

2
3

-M
ay

-1
3

26
|

4
4

-J
u

n
-1

3
2

4
i

i
1

2
0

-J
u

n
-1

3
2

7

!
5

1
6

-Ju
l-1

3
2

7

0
2

5
-Ju

l-1
3

2
6

T
o

ta
l

E
n

ro
llm

e
n

t
1

5
6

T
o

ta
l

R
e
v

e
n

u
e

$
2

3
,4

0
0

.0
0

A
verage

E
n

ro
llm

en
t

5
2

A
verage

M
o

n
th

ly
$

7
,8

0
0

.0
0

E
s
tim

a
te

d
A

n
n

u
a
l

T
o

ta
l

re
v

e
n

u
e
s

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

T
r
a

ffic
S

c
h

o
o

l
P

a
id

T
ic

k
e
t

Ju
d

ic
ia

l
A

d
m

in
F

u
n

d
$

6
,2

4
0

.0
0

$
6

,2
4

0
.0

0
Ju

d
ic

ia
l

A
d

m
in

F
u

n
d

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

$
3

4
,3

2
0

.0
0

$
2

5
,2

7
2

.0
0

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

P
o

lic
e

E
d

u
c
a
tio

n
$

5
3

,0
4

0
.0

0
$

2
3

,0
8

8
.0

0
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

P
o

lic
e

N
e
t

$
3

7
,4

4
0

.0
0

-$
1

5
,6

0
0

.0
0

P
o

lic
e

E
d

u
c
a
tio

n

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
5

4
,6

0
0

.0
0

R
e
a

llo
c
a

te
:

A
n

n
u

a
l

as
P

ro
p

o
sed

P
ro

p
o

sed
C

u
r
r
e
n

t

Ju
d

ic
ia

l
A

d
m

in
F

u
n

d
$

6
,2

4
0

.0
0

$
1

0
.0

0
$

1
0

.0
0

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

$
2

5
,2

7
2

.0
0

$
4

0
.5

0
$

5
5

.0
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
$

2
3

,0
8

8
.0

0
$

3
7

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

P
olice

E
ducation/T

raining
$

3
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

6
2

.5
0

$
8

5
.0

0

P
olice

N
et/E

x
p

en
ses

$
2

3
,4

0
0

.0
0

$
1

3
0

0
p

er
m

o
n

th
$

1
3

0
0

p
er

m
o

n
th

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
1

5
0

.0
0

$
1

5
0

.0
0



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2465 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND CREATING THE 
COLLISION AVOIDANCE TRAINING PROGRAM FOR CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2465 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills recognizes that automobile crashes are the 

leading cause of unintentional injury in Alabama and that automobile crashes continue to 

be the leading cause of death and injury to teens in our country/ and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills recognizes the depth of this problem and 

the impact it has on the quality of life for our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a preventative advanced car control training 

and defensive driving course geared for new or teen drivers is a proactive step in 

reducing said impact; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, more specifically, the Vestavia Hills 

Police Department and the National Traffic Safety Academy, Inc. has a Grant of Lease 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grant of Lease Agreement affords the Vestavia Hills Police 

Department a nontransferable, nonexclusive right, privilege and authorization to teach the 

NTSA Collision Avoidance Training Program (the NTSA CAT Program); and 

WHEREAS, the City, more specifically, the Vestavia Hills Police Department 

wishes to create and establish Collision Avoidance Training and defensive driving school 

for teen drivers as described; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

establish a Collision Avoidance Training and defensive driving school as described in the 

sections above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 2 

 
 

1. There is hereby established a Collision Avoidance Training and defensive 

driving program for teen drivers to be known as “CAT”, which shall be 

under the supervision of the Chief of Police or his/her designee.  Each 

person attending the course shall be charged no more than one hundred 

and twenty five dollars ($125.00) for evaluation, registration, supplies and 

instructor(s) fees.   

2. The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall be responsible for scheduling 

of classes, instructors and facilitators. The Chief of Police or his/her 

designee shall adopt rules and regulations for the operation of the 

established educational program, criteria for acceptance and completion 

and established fees for the appropriate program.  These rules and 

regulations, policy and procedures, and fee list shall be readily available 

for public inspection. 

3. All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Collision 

Avoidance Training Program in the form of registration fees, evaluation 

fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained in a separate account with the 

City Finance Department to be distributed as follows: 

a. to fully cover the cost of services provided by the previously 

mentioned education programs; and 

b. all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of providing various 

other traffic safety education and awareness programs to the Vestavia 

Hills community through the Traffic Safety Office of the Vestavia 

Hills Police Department or any other police activities.  The collection 

and use of these monies shall be under the supervision of the Police 

Chief and Finance Director. 

4. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code 

of Alabama, 1975. 

5. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 3 

 
 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which 

shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of 

September, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2465 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 
on the 23rd day of September, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of 
______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Danny Rary
Sent: Wednesday, September 04, 2013 2:27 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: CAT ord

Pat Boone approved the CAT ord and said it was logical  to do it the same as the ticket classes.   
 

 
Danny P. Rary 
Chief of Police 
Vestavia Hills Police Department 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
205‐978‐0109 Office 
205‐978‐01232 FAX 
drary@ci.vestaviahills.al.us 
 

 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4508 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR T WAYNES BBQ SMOKEHOUSE LLC D/B/A T 
WAYNES BBQ SMOKEHOUSE; TIMOTHY 
BRIDGES, EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for T Waynes BBQ Smokehouse LLC d/b/a T Waynes BBQ 

Smokehouse, located at 2409 Acton Road, Suite 153, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the 

on-premise sale of 020 - Restaurant Retail Liquor; Timothy Bridges, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 













 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4509 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR WCS VENTURES, LLC D/B/A CANDY'S WINE 
EXPERIENCE; CANDACE LAYNE WEST, 
EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for WCS Ventures, LLC d/b/a Candy's Wine Experience, located at 

640 Olde Towne Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 060 - Retail Table Wine 

(On or Off Premises); Candace Layne West, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 











Resolution Number 4487 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4510 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4510 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 23rd day of 

September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4510 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4511 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH RETAIL 
STRATEGIES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONSULTING 
SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills has recommended the 

building of a “team” for economic development for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended approval of an agreement from Retail 

Strategies for professional consulting and related services for economic development of the City; 

a copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4511 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council feel it is in the best public interest to approve said 

recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said 

agreement with Retail Strategies; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4511 shall become effective immediately upon adoption with 

funding from fiscal year 2014. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 

2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING AND RELATED SERVICES 

 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Retail Strategies, LLC, an 

Alabama limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”) and the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter referred to as “Client”) on this the ___ day of _________, 

2013, as follows: 

 WHEREAS, the Client desires to have performed those services identified on Exhibit A 

attached hereto (the “Project”), which it believes will promote the efficient operation of the 

Client; and, 

 WHEREAS, Consultant has made a proposal to the Client to provide consulting services 

related to the Project to Client as further set forth below. 

 

W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement is made and entered into on the date first above 

written by and between the Client and Consultant, by which Consultant will provide professional 

consulting and related services to the Client as hereinafter specified, through individuals 

possessing a high degree of professional skill where the personality of the individual will play a 

decisive role as follows: 

 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 Consultant agrees, for the consideration as stated herein, to provide professional 

consulting and related services to the Client for the Project as set out in Exhibit A.  

 

 

 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



2 
 

 

2. TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

 Consultant shall provide services pursuant to this agreement and expeditiously and in 

good faith conduct its work in such a manner as to complete its commitments for Client within 

three (3) calendar years which shall be calculated as October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2016. 

 Consultant shall commence, carry on and complete the Project with all practicable 

dispatch, in a sound, economical and efficient manner, in accordance with the provisions hereof 

and applicable laws.  In accomplishing the Project, Consultant shall take such steps as are 

appropriate to insure that the work involved is properly coordinated with related work and 

policies being carried on by the Client. 

 

3. COMPENSATION 

 The Client agrees to pay Consultant for the services as set forth herein, the sum of 

$40,000 per year.  Payment is to be made upon execution of this agreement and receipt of the 

invoice from Retail Strategies, LLC. Client will remit payment to Consultant upon receipt of 

invoice but no later than within thirty (30) days from receipt of invoice. The compensation for 

years two and three shall be $40,000 per year payable in the same manner as set forth above. The 

Client shall have the right to renew the contract for additional years, starting in year four, at the 

rate of $40,000 per year and thereafter, as mutually agreed between Client and Consultant.    

Client acknowledges that affiliates of Consultant act in the capacity of a real estate brokerage 

service business and may earn fees for services including brokerage, development, leasing and 

management fees in the performance of such affiliates services as part of the scope of the 

Project. 

  

4. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

 In addition to paying Consultant for services according to the preceding paragraph, the 

Client shall also provide for Consultant:  access to its relevant personnel, facilities, and materials 

including, but not necessarily limited to, those items specified in Consultant’s proposal to Client, 

and such records, reports, and information as reasonably requested by Consultant and in Client’s 

possession. 

 

5. LEVEL OF COMPETENCE 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



3 
 

 Consultant represents and warrants to the Client that it and all of its employees that will 

be working on the project for the Client are qualified and competent to perform the services 

required.  Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any pre-existing contractual 

relationship with the Client.  All of the services required hereunder will be performed by 

Consultant or under its supervision. 

 The Project Directors for the performance of services by Consultant pursuant to the terms 

and conditions of this agreement shall be Chuck Branch, Robert Jolly, Brad Siegal, Bill 

Clements and Charles Branch, or other employees as deemed necessary by Consultant.  

Consultant may also use additional employees to assist with the performance of this Agreement 

as Consultant deems appropriate in Consultant’s discretion. 

 

6. MATERIALS/CONFIDENTIALITY 

 The Client agrees to cooperate with and provide Consultant with access to facilities and 

information within its reasonable possession and control, requested by Consultant for its review 

and use in performing the services herein.  Provided, however, all such documents, information, 

results, memoranda and all other written information (“information”) shall be held confidential 

by Consultant and any of its sub-contractors and shall not, without the prior written consent of 

the Client, be used for any purpose other than the performance of this agreement nor be disclosed 

to any other entity not connected with performance of this agreement.  Upon completion of 

services, Consultant shall return all such information to the Client.  The Client shall retain 

ownership of all such information provided by Client. 

 

7. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

 The Client and Consultant, jointly and separately, acknowledge and agree that the 

intellectual property of both parties shall remain owned by the respective party.  With the 

exception of Consultant’s periodic and final reports generated for performance of this agreement 

to or for the Client, reports, memorandums, electronic mail, facsimile transmissions and other 

written and prepared documents shall be owned by the party who authored, generated or who 

originally possessed the same and nothing in this agreement shall contravene said rights. 

 

8. INFORMATION AND REPORTS 

 Consultant shall furnish an electronic version of a final written report and such periodic 

reports concerning the status of the project as may be requested by the Client’s representative 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



4 
 

pursuant to the schedule to be provided by Consultant.  Consultant shall furnish the Client, upon 

request, with electronic copies of all documents and other material prepared or developed in 

relation with or as part of the project.  Such requests shall be reasonable and within normal 

business practices for such work. 

 

9. COPYRIGHT INFORMATION 

 The Client acknowledges that all intellectual property developed during the course of this 

agreement by Consultant shall belong exclusively to Consultant.  However, the Client may 

utilize any of the foregoing for and on behalf of its internal operations, but will take steps 

reasonably necessary with its employees with respect to the use, copying, protection and security 

of the foregoing. 

 

10. APPLICABLE LAWS 

 Consultant shall register and comply with all State or Federal laws and/or regulations as 

they may relate to the services or activities of the Consultant to the Client. 

 

11. IMMIGRATION 

 By signing this Agreement, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the 

Agreement, that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 

employment or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama.  

Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in 

breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 
 

12. INSURANCE 

 Consultant carries General Liability Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance, Umbrella 

Coverage, Worker’s Compensation Insurance, Errors and Omissions Liability Coverage and 

Employee Dishonesty Insurance  with Cincinnati Insurance Company, Alabama Retail Comp, 

CNA and Traveler’s Insurance. 

 

13. TERMINATION 

 The Client reserves the right with or without cause, to terminate this agreement after the 

initial three year term by giving written notice to Consultant of such termination at least fifteen 

(15) days before the start date of the next renewing term.  In the event of termination pursuant to 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



5 
 

this paragraph, Consultant shall cease performing any work pursuant to this agreement and be 

entitled to compensation for services rendered through the effective date of termination.  All fees 

paid for any term shall be deemed fully earned when paid and are not subject to refund following 

any termination hereunder. 

 

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 The Consultant represents and warrants to the Client, to the best of its knowledge, that 

neither it nor its Project Directors are aware of any conflict of interest which exists by means of 

its provision of services to the Client pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

 

15. NOTICES/PARTIES REPRESENTATIVES 

 The representative of the Client for this agreement shall be Jeff Downes, City Manager. 

 All notices, bills, invoices and reports required by this agreement shall be sufficient if 

sent by the parties hereto in the United Sates Mail, postage prepaid thereon to the addresses 

noted below: 

Client: City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Hwy 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

 Attn: Jeff Downes  
 
  Consultant:  Retail Strategies, LLC 
     120 18th Street South 
     Suite 201 
     Birmingham, AL  35233 
     Attention:  Chuck Branch 

 

16. REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY 

 While Consultant’s role will be that of consultant to the Client, Consultant shall be and 

remain an independent contractor and not act in the role of an agent or legal representative on 

behalf of the Client.  Consultant shall not have the authority to bind or obligate the Client, its 

officers, agents or employees.   

 

17. MISCELLANEOUS 

 Capacity:  Each party to this agreement represents and warrants to the other as follows: 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



6 
 

 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal entity 

duly organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules and 

regulations. 

 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this agreement, to 

perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent applicable, to 

grant, convey and/or transfer; areas, assets, facilities, properties, (both real and personal), 

permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full power and right to acquire and accept 

the same. 

 C. That to the extent required, each party has obtained the necessary approval 

of its governing body, board, council or other appropriate governing body and a 

resolution or other binding act has been duly and properly enacted by such governing 

body or board authorizing this agreement and said approval has been reduced to writing 

and certified or attested by the appropriate official of the party. 

 D. That each party has duly authorized and empowered a representative to 

execute this agreement on their respective behalf and the execution of this agreement by 

such representative fully and completely binds the party to the terms and conditions 

hereof. 

 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this agreement by a representative of 

the party shall constitute a certification that all such authorizations for execution exist and 

have been performed and the other party shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To the 

extent a party is a partnership, limited liability company or joint venture, the execution of 

this agreement by any member thereof shall bind the party and to the extent that the 

execution of agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or specific member 

then the person so executing this agreement is duly authorized to act in such capacity for 

the party. 

 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that, to the best of its 

knowledge, there is no litigation, claim or administrative action threatened or pending or 

other proceedings to its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact upon 

this transaction or upon either’s ability to conclude the transaction or perform pursuant to 

the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, approvals 

and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform pursuant to this 

agreement. 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



7 
 

 

Third Party Beneficiaries:  It is the intent of the parties hereto that there shall be no 

third party beneficiaries to this agreement. 

 

Final Integration:  This agreement, together with any exhibits or amendments hereto, 

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final integration thereof 

with respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct conflict between the provisions 

hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, the latter shall supersede the former.  All 

written or oral understandings and agreements heretofore had between and among the 

parties are merged into this agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses their 

understandings.  No representation, warranty, or covenant made by any party which is not 

contained in this agreement or expressly referred to herein have been relied on by any 

party in entering into this agreement. 

 

Force Majeure:  Neither party to this agreement shall hold the other party responsible 

for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other 

circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other party’s employees, 

agents or contractors. 

 

Amendment in Writing:  This agreement may not be amended, modified, altered, 

changed, terminated, or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a further agreement 

in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 

 

 

Binding Effect:  This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective personal 

representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatee, distributees, successors, and assigns.  If any 

provision in this agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality 

and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or 

impaired thereby. 

 

Captions:  The captions of this agreement are for convenience and reference only, are 

not a part of this agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope or 

intent of this agreement. 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



8 
 

 

Construction:  This agreement shall be construed in its entirety according to its plain 

meaning and shall not be construed against the party who provided or drafted it. 

 

Mandatory and Permissive:  “Shall”, “will”, and “agrees” are mandatory; “may” is 

permissive. 

 

Governing Law:  The laws of the State of Alabama, but without regard to conflict of 

laws principles, shall govern the validity of this agreement, the construction of its terms, 

the interpretation of the rights, the duties of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and 

all other matters relating to this agreement. 

 

Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation:  No party to this agreement may assign or 

delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written consent of all other 

parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment or delegation.  No such 

assignment or delegation shall in any manner whatsoever relieve any party from its 

obligations and duties hereunder and such assigning or delegating party shall in all 

respects remain liable hereunder irrespective of such assignment or delegation. 

 

Waiver:  Non-enforcement of any provision of this agreement by either party shall not 

constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision 

or of the remaining terms and conditions of the agreement. 

 

Agreement Date/Counterparts:  The date of this agreement is intended as and for a date 

for the convenient identification of this agreement and is not intended to indicate that this 

agreement was necessarily executed and delivered on said date.  This instrument may be 

executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed an 

original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same 

instrument. 

 

Arbitration:  Should any dispute between Consultant and Client arise at any time out of 

any aspect of this Agreement or the relationship hereunder, or against any employee, 

officer, agent, director, member, affiliate, subsidiary or parent, the parties hereto agree to 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



9 
 

have any such dispute resolved by final and binding arbitration in accordance with the 

rules of the American Arbitration Association.   

 

 
 
 
 
CLIENT: 
 
 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

     
By _________________________________ 

 
       Title _______________________________ 
    
       Date ______________________________ 
 
        

By _________________________________ 
 
       Title _______________________________ 
    
       Date ______________________________ 
 
 
 

CONSULTANT: 
       RETAIL STRATEGIES, LLC 
 
 
       By _________________________________ 
 
       Title _______________________________ 

 
       Date _______________________________ 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
PROJECT MISSION  
 
In a partnership with The City of Vestavia Hills, the goal of Retail Strategies is to successfully recruit 
new retail, restaurant, entertainment, and hospitality concepts to the primary trade areas within The City 
of Vestavia Hills: 
 

• The Highway 31 Corridor 
• Rocky Ridge Road at or near the intersection of Rocky Ridge and Morgan Drive 
• Cahaba Heights 
• Liberty Park 
• Patchwork Farms 

 
The principal missions behind our goal are to increase the city sales tax revenue, enhance the quality of 
life, and expand the base of convenient and desirable goods, services, dining, entertainment and 
hospitality venues for the citizens and visitors of Vestavia Hills’s regional trade area.  It is our 
commitment to work closely with The City of Vestavia Hills, city officials, citizens, property owners, 
developers, brokers, and retail tenants in any way necessary to accomplish our goal and mission.   
 
Our team will create Objectives and Action Plans that will be updated and presented to The City of 
Vestavia Hills every six (6) months.  Additionally, we will establish a client login through Basecamp 
Project Management Software that is accessible on our company website (www.retailstrategies.com), 
where all files, marketing materials, and prospect reporting is stored and updated.  Finally, a member of 
our team will be in Vestavia Hills as often as necessary to provide direct interaction with City officials, 
conduct “boots on the ground” research, engage with local property owners, developers and brokers, and 
to host new retail prospects visiting the market.   
  
SUMMARY OF RETAIL ANALYSIS AND SERVICES:  

 
• Custom Demographic Research – Historical, Current, and Projected Demographics – to include 

market trade areas by radius/drive-time, and custom trade areas associated with the City of 
Vestavia Hills  

• Mosaic Lifestyles – Market Segmentation Analysis 
• Retail Gap Analysis 
• Retail Peer Analysis  
• Thematic Mapping and Aerial Imagery by trade area   
• Retail Competitor Mapping/Analysis 
• Market Maximization Summary and Strategic Recruitment Plan  
• Identification of Retail Prospects 
• Active Retailer Recruitment and execution of the Retail Strategic Plan  

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



11 
 

• Representation at local, regional and national retail conferences and conventions 
• Participation in 2 all day workshops/charrettes per year 

 
 
STRATEGIC RETAIL RECRUITMENT PLAN 

 
Upon completion of the research, the Retail Strategies team will provide electronic versions of all 
deliverables to the City of Vestavia Hills through the Retail Strategies BaseCamp platform that will serve 
as a working resource continuously updated with current data, research and prospect information.  All of 
the detailed demographic materials as summarized above will be included and conveniently labeled for 
easy review by the City of Vestavia.    

 
Also included in the deliverable package will be the Strategic Retail Recruitment Plan to be prepared and 
executed by Retail Strategies, LLC and its partners.  Included in this portion of the package are the 
following: 

 
1. Retailer Overview and Recruitment Plan- Summary of the primary retail gaps inclusive 

of the key retailers to be pursued with a prototypical overview of each retailer relative to 
size, economics, etc. 

2. Local Property Catalog- Retail Strategies LLC and its partners will work with the City of 
Vestavia Hills to catalog all local commercial properties that may be suitable sites to 
present to prospective new retailers.  This will include maps, marked aerials and all 
pertinent contact and site specific information relative to each site.  

3. Call List and Recruitment Update- an ongoing tracking form to keep city contacts 
updated relative to recruitment efforts and specific interaction with prospective retailers.  

4. Retail Strategies LLC will work with the local property owners, commercial real estate 
brokers and developers as needed to assist their respective retail recruitment efforts. 

 
 
Project Team 
 
Chuck Branch is CEO of Decision Data Resources and co-founded Retail Strategies in 2011. Chuck has 
spent much of his career managing the development and implementation of large database and GIS 
projects and solutions for municipalities and workforce development related agencies and organizations 
across the United States.  
 
Robert Jolly is the President of Birmingham based Retail Specialists, Inc. and co-founded Retail 
Strategies in 2011. He oversees all financial, development and management aspects of both companies. 
During his time at Retail Specialists, Inc., he has overseen the leasing and management of more than 
5,000,000 sf of retail space and has assisted some of the most well-known tenants in the United States 
with their expansion into new markets in the Southeast.   
 
Brad G. Siegal joined Retail Strategies in 2012 and serves as General Counsel providing legal assistance 
and oversight as the firm provides research, strategic planning, and retail recruitment services to its 
growing list of municipal clients throughout the Southeast. Brad also works with the firm's retail real 
estate company, Retail Specialists, Inc., focusing on the legal and investment matters of the company and 
providing legal assistance and resources in the development, acquisition, disposition, leasing and business 
development efforts of the firm and its clients.  Brad has been a practicing attorney for more than 22 
years.  He has represented major real estate clients, including investment funds and REIT’s in their 
acquisitions, dispositions, and other commercial activities throughout the United States.   Brad is an AV-
Peer reviewed lawyer, a member of several “Best Of” listings, and involved in many real estate specific 
organizations such as the Attorneys and Executives in Commercial Real Estate (AECRE).    
 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A



12 
 

Bill Clements provides retail recruitment oversight to many of Retail Strategies engaged cities and has 
successfully connected many cities and their local property owners and developers with unique regional 
and national retailers.  Bills areas of expertise include Leasing, Brokerage, Disposition, Tenant 
Representation, and Consulting.  Bill has worked as a third-party representative for retail Lifestyle 
Centers, Power Centers, Neighborhood Centers, unanchored strip centers, outparcels, and retail land.  Bill 
earned the coveted Certified Commercial Investment Member (CCIM) designation from the CCIM 
Institute.  He is a member of the International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC), the Alabama CCIM 
Chapter and the Birmingham Commercial Real Estate Club.   
 
 
Charles Branch is a Client Manager with Retail Strategies and will serve as the primary contact for 
managing research request from the city, property owners, brokers and developers, updating the Strategic 
Prospect List, and assistance with Basecamp.  Charles has played a key role in Retail Strategies from its 
inception, assisting in the research and retail recruitment efforts for multiple municipal clients throughout 
the Southeast. Charles also provides assistance in the execution of the strategic retail recruitment plan, 
focusing on the identification of companies to fill the product and service gaps within each city’s trade 
area(s). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No 4511 - Exhibit A











RESOLUTION NUMBER 4512 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills has recommended a “team” 

approach to economic development of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”); and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has worked with the Vestavia Hills Chamber of 

Commerce (“Chamber”) to become a part of the team approach lending its professional expertise 

to the economic development of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Chamber have worked together to draft a 

Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”); a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached 

to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4512 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the City Manager in building his team to include the Chamber. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver said agreement with the 

Chamber pursuant to the provisions detailed in the attached Exhibit A; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4512 shall become effective immediately upon approval with 

funding from fiscal year 2014. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 

2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

Memorandum of Understanding 

 

To:  Karen Odle, President/CEO 
  Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce 
 
From:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
  City of Vestavia Hills 
 
Date:  September 5, 2013 
 
Re:  Economic Development Strategic Plan  

As a part of the new proposed economic development strategy of the City of Vestavia Hills and in 
keeping with the Market Street Implementation Plan of 2012, the City of Vestavia Hills shall provide, 
subject to City Council approval, a supplemental appropriation to the Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce, within its FY 2014 budget, of $30,000. This amount shall be payable in October of 2013 and 
January of 2014 in two equal payments of $15,000. In return for this payment, the Chamber shall have 
the general responsibility of serving as the marketing lead for the City’s economic development plan and 
coordinator of brand development for the City. This general goal shall be accomplished, at a minimum, 
through the following tasks: 

1. Continue Brand Development of the City Council Adopted branding concept through the 
following actions: 

a. Recruiting and selecting a new advertising and marketing agency that will enhance and 
further develop the existing brand. This shall be accomplished in a collaborative manner 
to include City and Chamber Officials. (Complete by November 1, 2013) 

b. Determine, within budget constraints and at the recommendation of the advertising 
agency, the most effective means to market the existing City of Vestavia Hills businesses 
while being conscious of brand loyalty. (Make Recommendations to the Market Street 
Implementation Committee by January 2014) 
 

2. Develop Two Programmatic Activities for business enhancement in targeted business corridors. 
These programmatic activities will involve the engagement and organization of the merchants of 
those areas but utilize resources in the appropriation for brand conscious advertising or 
program supplies to support public involvement with the selected programs. (These programs 
might involve themed events surrounding Valentine’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, Halloween, or some 
other notable date)   

a. The Chamber shall organize a working group of its members to envision, plan and 
implement the two activities. (Dates to be determined. Programs to occur during FY 14) 

b. The activities will serve as an opportunity to show how collective programs can improve 
the business climate for an area. 

Resolution No 4512 - Exhibit A



 

c. The Chamber shall coordinate advertising through the selected advertising agency. 
 

3. The Chamber shall keep the City of Vestavia Hills apprised of projects to support the existing 
businesses of Vestavia Hills and serve as the primary communicator to that existing business 
base. 
 

4. The supplemental appropriation may be used to offset the administrative and personnel costs of 
the Chamber in accomplishing these tasks. 
 

5. Chamber shall work with the City to explore the creation of entertainment districts for select 
locations. 
 

 

Chamber of Commerce Approvals        City of Vestavia Hills Approval 

 

__________________________         ___________________________ 

 

 

__________________________         ___________________________ 

 

Resolution No 4512 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4513 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN “AUTHORIZATION TO BIND INSURANCE 
COVERAGE” WITH J. SMITH LANIER AND COMPANY, FOR EXCESS 
LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE AND AUTOMOBILE PHYSICAL 
DAMAGE COVERAGE 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an authorization to bind 

insurance coverage with J. Smith Lanier and Company for excess liability insurance 

coverage and automobile physical damage coverage for the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

2. A copy of said proposal and authorization to bind is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4513 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4513 shall become effective October 1, 2013. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



Resolution No 4513 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4514 
 

A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE DATE OF A REGULAR CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING FROM NOVEMBER 11, 2013 TO NOVEMBER 13, 
2013 

 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills City Council regularly meets the 2nd and 4th Monday of 

each month; and 

 WHEREAS, November 11, 2013 is the 2nd Monday of the month of November; 

however, the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center is closed in honor or Veterans Day; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

reschedule said meeting to Wednesday, November 13, 2013 beginning at 5 PM. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The first regular meeting of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for Monday, 

November 11, 2013 has been rescheduled to Wednesday, November 13, 2013 beginning 

at 5 PM; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4514 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2466 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2466 
 

AN ORDINANCE FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT REAL 
PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
BEING APPROXIMATELY 1.66± ACRES OF THE PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1112 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY AND AN 
APPROXIMATE 22,000 SQUARE FOOT BUILDING LOCATED ON THE 
PROPERTY (“PROPERTY”) IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC OR 
MUNICIPAL PURPOSES; TO ACCEPT AN OFFER BY COMMERCIAL 
REALTY PARTNERS, LLC AND/OR ASSIGNS, ANALABAMA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY OR ITS ASSIGNS (“THE PURCHASER”) TO 
PURCHASE THE PROPERTY FOR SEVEN HUNDRED ANF FIFTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($750,000.00) AND TO AUTHORIZE AND 
DIRECT THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE SALE 
 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2466 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 14th day of October, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) is the owner of a parcel of 

land situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama commonly referred to as 

the former Library property; and 

 WHEREAS, Commercial Realty Partners, LLC and/or Assigns, an Alabama Limited 

Liability Company or its Assigns (“Purchasers”) has offered to purchase from the City the 

property consisting of approximately 1.66 +/- acres with all improvements located on the 

property for a price of Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($750,000.00) (“offer”) in an Purchase 

and Sale Agreement (“Agreement”) a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,”, attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2466 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it is willing to accept the offer by the 

Purchasers; and 

  WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “The governing body of any city or town in this state may, by ordinance to 
be entered on its minutes, direct the disposal of any real property not needed for 
public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor to make title thereto, and a 
conveyance made by the mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests the 
grantee with the title of the municipality,” and 
  
  



Ordinance Number 2466 
Page 2 

 
 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “Contracts entered into by a municipality shall be in writing, signed and 
executed in the name of the city or town by the officers authorized to make the 
same and by the party contracting.  In cases not otherwise directed by law or 
ordinance, such contracts shall be entered into and executed by the mayor in the 
name of the city or town and all obligations for the payment of money by the 
municipality, except for bonds and interest coupons, shall be attested by the clerk.  
This section shall not be construed to cover purchases for the ordinary needs of 
the municipality;” and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that the Property is not needed for municipal or public purposes; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The Property, more particularly described in Section 3 below, is hereby found and 

determined not to be needed for public or municipal purposes by the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama and is hereby declared as surplus property all in accordance with the requirements of 

Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to sell the Property described 

in paragraph 3 below for and in consideration of the sum of Seven Hundred and Fifty Thousand 

Dollars ($750,000.00). 

 3. The exact legal description of the Property (approximately 1.66± acres) is 

described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 30, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particularly 
described as follows:. 
 
From the SW corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section run thence in an Easterly direction 
along the South line of same for a distance of 589.77 feet to the point of 
beginning of the parcel herein described; thence turn an angle to the left of 103 
degrees 33 minutes 57 seconds and run in a Northwesterly direction for a distance 
of 206.63 feet; thence turn an angle to the right of 101 degrees 35 minutes 18 
seconds and run in an easterly direction for a distance of 359.60 feet to a point on 
the westerly right-of-way of US Highway 31 said point being in a curve to the 
right having a radius of 3173.97 feet and a central angle of 3 degrees 54 minutes 
57 seconds and being concave to the west with a chord which forms an interior 
angle of 98 degrees 29 minutes 45 seconds with the previous call; thence run 
along the arc of said curve in a right of way line in a southerly direction for a 
distance of 216.93 feet to the South line of said 1/4-1/4 section, the chord of said 
curve forming an interior angle of 79 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds with said 



Ordinance Number 2466 
Page 3 

 
South line of Said 1/4-1/4 section; thence run in a Westerly direction along said 
South line for a distance of 350.34 feet to the point of beginning. 
 

 5. Upon approval, adoption and enactment of this Ordinance Number 2466, the 

Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute any and all documents 

necessary to close the sale of the Property to the Purchasers pursuant to the authority of Title 11-

47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 6. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval, adoption 

and enactment. 

 7. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 

holding. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 14th day of October, 

2013. 

 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2466 
Page 4 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2466 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 14th 
day of October, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 






























	2013_0923CC_A
	Resolution 4494
	Resolution 4495
	0923 Agenda

	Resolution 4505

	Resolution 4507

	Ordinance 2464
	Ordinance 2465
	Resolution 4508
	Resolution 4509
	Resolution 4510
	Resolution 4511
	Resolution 4512
	Resolution 4513
	Resolution 4514
	Ordinance 2466



